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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Report (continued)
Year Ended 31 December 2010

The directors present their report and financlal statements for the year ended 31% December 2010,
Status

The company Is a mutual company limited by guarantee without share capital.

Principal actlvities

The company cartles on the business of insurance against marine and war risks and risks incidental to
marine Insurance, including protection and indemnity risks, of vessels in which the members of the
campany are interested.

The company alsc carries on the business of insurance against risks incidental to aquaculture.

Inward reinsurance in respect of marine and aguaculture risks is also accepted.

The principal activities of the company's subsldiaries are marine reinsurance and insurance broking.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Forward looking statements

This business review contains statements on the company’s outiook for the future. By their nature such
staterments involve uncertainties as they relate to future events and these may be affected materially by
a variety of existing factors, both economic and market based.

Strategy

The company’s objectives are to provide protection to policyholders where the scope of cover has been
tailored to meet specific needs, and to achleve and maintain the highest standards of service.

This requires cover to be provided at an economic premium which is falr and reasonable to cover both the
attendant risks and other costs of the company as are retevant from time to time and to provide a timely
and informed response in resoiving the losses of policyholders.

Stability and continuity are cornerstones of this strategy. Stability of financlal strength to withstand
market conditions and unforeseen events, and continuity of cover, membership, counterparty
relationships and employees are all important elements in maintaining price and service stability in the
company’s niche markets.

Markets

The company underwrites a vartety of marine risks, including hull and machinery, protection and
indemnity and personal accident as well as “all risks’ cover for the aquaculture industry.

The portfolio of risks is well diversified within the marine portfolio in relation to size of vessel, fishery and
service activity and within aquaculture by species.

This diversification is further enhanced gecgraphically. The company's markets for marine are the UK
{16.6%), North America (39.5%), Europe (14.2%), Australasla {19.5%), and others (10.2%), and for
aquaculture they are UK (12.4%}, North America (51.9%), Europe (11.2%), Australasia {10.3%), South
America (13.7%) and others (0.5%).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Business environment

Competition has remained a key factor In many geographical areas during the year, primarily where price
is focused on acquiring short-term market share. Palicyholder loyalty to the company and rates of
renewal remain high.

Over the course of the year Sterling weakened against the Canadian, Australian, New Zealand and United
States Dollars whilst appreclating marginally against the Euro. Changes in exchange rates affect the
Sterling equivalent of underlying overseas figures reported within the financial statements. The group,
however, maintalns assets in the currency of risk that are materlally sufficient to meet its liabilitles in
that currency and therefore the net asset position is not significantly affected by alterations in currency
conversion rates between Sterling and other currencies,

Key performance indicators

The company’s key financial performance indicators (KPis) are those that communicate the financial
performance and strength of the group as a whole to the company’s members and counterparties. These
KPls comprise:-

. Written premium

. Combined ratic (net claims costs plus net operating expenses as a proportion of earned premium
net of reinsurance)

Loss ratio (net clalms costs as a proportion of earned premium net of reinsurance)

Expense ratio (net operating expenses as a proportion of earned premlum net of reinsurance)
Operating performance before investment return

Investment return

Solvency margin {free reserves as a proportion of earned premium net of reinsurance)

Group performance

The group’s written premium of £73,747,000 reflects a reduction of 4.0% from £76,786,000 in 2009,
Taking out the currency effect the reduction, in real terms, was 7.7%.

Operating performance remained satisfactory under difficult trading cenditions with a technical
underwriting deficit of £360,000 (2009: £677,000). Positive Investment return in the non-technical
account of £3,336,000 (2009: £5,761,000) produced a surplus before tax of £2,976,000 (2009:
£5,084,000). Net of tax the surplus was £2,555,000 (2009; £4,449,000).

Net operating expenses decreased but the expense ratio increased to 39.1% (2009: 36.9%) reflective of
lower net premium income. The combined ratio was 104,2% (2009: 104.5%).

Marine
The marine division accounted for 81.1% of written premiums in 2010 (2009: 85.2%]).

The business Is written woridwide. Protection and indemnity business has a US and European bias and
personal accldent has a UK and Australian bias.

Marine wrltten premium reduced by £5,643,000 mainly due to the strategic withdrawal from French
Polynesia and parts of South America.

Retained written premium continued with moderate increases in a number of areas. Hutl rates were
Increased by 3-5% in the UK, Australia, New Zealand, Holland and parts of the USA even against a
backdrop of domestic competition in the respective countries in question. P&I premium Increases of 5-
10% were also achieved in the UK, Ireland and Australia along with smaller increments in the company’s
Spanish portfolio. Retention rates were again very high - with the global average exceeding 95%.

Sustainability is increasingly Important as the fishing industry and governments strive to ensure there Is
a sustainable industry for future generations of fishermen. The success of fisheries management is vital
to protect stocks and ensure the viability of the Industry. For those that have adapted, many reported
strong results in 2010. Working with key partners, our non-fishing vessel portfolio continues to grow and
represents over 30% of direct vessels insured by the company.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Report (continued)
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Direct marine business written in 2010 is protected by a quota share reinsurance contract. The effects of
this contract are to increase outward reinsurance premiums, reinsurance commissions and reinsurers’
share of claims incurred in the income and expenditure account and to increase reinsurers’ share of
technical provisions in the consoclidated balance sheet,

Aquaculture
The aquaculture division accounted for 18.9% of gross written premium In 2010 (2009: 14.8%).

Written premiums increased by 14.8% in real terms. A relatively static risk profile was retained for 2010,
reflecting the company’'s wish to consolidate the portfolio following significant business movements,
effected during 2009 in response to worsening experlence in areas such as Chile. Apart from a sudden
and unexpected increase in clalms due to sea lice, the underlying trend remained posliive with lower
seasonal losses from blooms, disease and storms. The sea lice problem has been brought under controi
once again through timely Intervention by the farm operators asslsted by an increasing understanding of
the need for support oh the part of regulators.

Stability has returned to the tuna market, allowing the company to tentatively and strateglcally increase
its market share, but only to a modest extent until a market trend is firmly established,

2010 was characterised in the industry by continuing capital investment, mergers and takeovers, but on
this occaslon from an unexpected direction, that of processors buying Iinto the producer market. It is a
feature the company is following with great interest. This has been a driver to further consolidation of the
salmon Industry which we expect to continue throughout 2011.

Investment return

The company’s investment portfollo structure has changed little during 2010. Underlying asset allocation
remains heavily weighted toward bond investment,

The board has maintained the cautious investment strategy initiated In 2009 with emphasis placed on
capital preservation and stable income generation.

The portfolic has generated a satisfactory investment return of £3,336,000 (2009: £5,761,000). This is
above that anticipated and is reflective of the further compression of bond yields during the year.

Investment risk is monitored closely to ensure it remalns within the budget set by the board. The risk
budget is likely to remain at current low levels during 2011. It follows that a lower Investment return
should be expected given high bond investment welghting and the current level of bond ylelds.

Capital structure and solvency

The company’s markets and structure require it to meet regulatory capital requirements in eight
jurisdictions and to report to fourteen different supervisory authorities around the world.

The company’s primary regulator is the UK’'s Financlal Services Authority (FSA), under whose auspices
the capital regime for regulated Insurance businesses continues to evolve with Enhanced Capital
Requirements (ECR}, Individual Capital Assessments (ICA} and Individual Capltal Guldance (ICG)., The
company has developed a framework using the Financlal Services Authority's ICA principies to Identify
risks that business units and the company as a whole are exposed to and quantify their impact on
economic capital. The company continues to develop financlal modelling and other tests to calculate and
maintain capltal required at a 99.5% confidence level,

The company, its branches and subsidiartes all satisfy existing regulatory requirements. The company’s
capital structure is considered appropriate to support the group’s business needs for the foreseeable
future.

The company monitors capital adequacy across the group by reference to FSA requirements, and to the

published solvency margin, being the ratio of its capital and reserves to earned premiums net of
reinsurance.
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The solvency margin has strengthened this year from 71.9% In 2009 to 94.5% in 2010, The increase in
the ratio during 2010 is due to the fall in net earned premium, as a result of new reinsurances taken out
in the year,

The total capital and reserves of the group are £46,030,000 compared with £43,664,000 at 313
December 2009. The reserve fund of the company Is £26,007,000 (2009: £26,007,000) and the surplus
retalned in the income and expenditure account of the group is £19,823,000 (2009: £17,322,000).

The company is working towards Solvency II and has developed a timetable for review and development
of its governance, risk management and capital systems to ensure that compliance Is achlieved by the
implementation date.

Mutuality and policy years

The company does not have investors to whom dividends are pald or from whom additional capital would
be sought in the event that it Is required. Should additional capital be required the company could, as
one of its options, seek contributions from its members on its current open policy years. The company’s

policy Is not to attract additional capital either from members or the financial markets, preferring to
accumuiate and deploy capital through Its own business acumen.

It is accordingly the company’s policy to charge premiums that it is estimated will meet the net clalms,
reinsurance premiums, expenses and other costs and commitments of each year.

Cash flow
Operations utilised £7,145,000 of cash (2009: £1,869,000),

Portfolio investments decreased by £1,687,000 {2009: increase £2,556,000). Deposit and short-term
cash holdings were reduced by £7,639,000 (2009: decrease £10,811,000).

Employees

The company alms to attract, develop, retain and motivate high quslity staff. The growth and
development of the company and the number of employees, including senlor staff, with long service
records is testament to the success of this objective.

Risk management

The risks, related uncertainties and detalls on how the company mitigates these risks are summarised
below and reported In more detall in note 1 to the financial statements.

The primary objective of the company’s risk management framework is to protect the group from events
that hinder the achievement of service objectives and financial performance. Detalls of the company’s
governance framework are given in the directors’ report on corporate governance on pages 11 to 16,

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the group are summarised beiow.

Insurance contracts risk

Insurance contracts risk is the potentlal adverse financlal impact if combined claims, acquisition and
administrative costs exceed the amount of premium income earned.

Market risk

Market risk is the potential adverse financial impact of changes to Interest rates and equity prices.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential adverse financial impact of loss In the value of financial assets due %o

counterparties (such as, but not limited to, insurance debtors, banks and reinsurers) failing to meet all or
part of thelr obligations.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility that the company does not have sufficient available assets to meet
obligations as they fall due,

Operational risk

Operational risk arises as a result of inadequately controlled internal processes or systems, human error
or from external events, This definition is intended to include all other risks to which the company is
exposed including, for example, Infoermation technology, information security, human resources, tax,
legal, fraud, compliance risks, project management and outsourcing,

Group risk

Group risk arises from the potential for adverse events in, or the failure of, one of the subslidiaries to
affect the group as a whole.

Directors

The directors of the company are shown below.

In accordance with Article 38 of the Articles of Association the following directors retire by rotation:
F.J. Mattera

C.H.D. Venn*

W.1.73. Crowe

P.M. Johnson

T.F. Hart

(* Not standing for re-election)
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The table below shows the composition of the board and Its committees at 31* December 2010.

On the 30" June 2010 Mrs A J Alden, Mr T Rutter and Miss A C Vipond were appointed as directors. On
22" March 2011 Mr S W Taylor was appointed as a director. In accordance with Article 41 of the Articles
of Assoclation, these four new directors will retire at the Annual General Meeting and offer themselves for
re-election.

A legend is shown in support of the table:

* member of board or committee
¢ chairman of board or comimittee

s
- r e
¢ 2§ § >
g g E o ¢ 28
T B = ﬁ E a =
Director 5§ 3 % 9 : E £ ﬁ g E
8 2 o & § 2 & ¥ &0

A, Alden (executive director - appointed 30.06.10) * * T R
). Alford * *
A.D.W. Allan *# || * | 2] x| %] %] =*x]=
P.A. Bobeff * | ¥ * | % [ o | % * | % | x
J.B, Crichton * * * *
W.1.). Crowe * | *
T.F. Hart cl*xlcl*|*]x]clelelc
C.3. Hiiton * * *
P.M, Johnson * | ¥
A.L. Marr * B
F.J. Mattera *
G.C. Parkinson (executive director) * * e | ® [ R
T. Rutter (executive director - appointed 30.06,10) x
P.1. Talley *
C.H.D. Venn *
A.C. Vipond {executive directer — appointed 30.06.10) * * *
D.M. Windmilll * | ®
S. W. Taylor {appolnted 22° March 2011) * ]

In addition to those persons shown above, Mr A S Blake (Corporate Treasurer) and Mr D McEuen are
members of the investment committee.
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Directors’ biographical details
Alison J. Alden (40)

Mrs Alden commenced employment with Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited in 2004,
She was appointed to the board as an executive director on 30" June 2010. She is aiso a director of
certain subsidiary companies. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. She is the finance director of the company and Is based in England.

Jeremy D. Alford (48)

Mr Alford was appointed as a non-executive director of the company In 2009, He is also a director of the
East Sussex Downs and Weald Primary Care Trust. His involvement with the company began many years
ago through his previous employment with Alliance Bemnstein, London (of which he was senlor vice
president) and Whittingdale Heldings Ltd. He is based in England,

Alistair D. W. Allan (66)

Mr Allan was appointed as a non-executive director In 1986 and is also a director of certain subsidiary
companies and jolnt ventures, He is alse a director of The Shipowners Mutual Protection and Indemnity
Association and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland. He was previously
managing director of Denholm Seafoods Limited, retiring from that position In 2004, and is based In
Scotland.

Peter A. Bobeff (69} Vice chairman

Mr Bobeff was appolnted as a non-executive director in 1985 and as vice-chairman in 2007. He ls, ex
officio, a member of all board comimittees. He was previcusly Senior Vice President Commercial Affairs of
Foster's Group Limited, retiring In 2005, a director of the Global Foundation Group, Chalrman of
International House Councll, University of Melbourne and on the advisory board of Visy Industries Group,
retiring in 2009, He is based in Australia.

J. Peter Crichton (62)

Mr Crichton was appointed as a non-executlve director in 2008. He was previously joint managing
director of North of England P&I Association, retiring in 2006. He continues to act as a consultant to it. He
Is also a trustee of the Edward Lloyd Trust. He is based in England.

William 3. 3. Crowe (63)

Mr Crowe was appointed as a non-executive director in 2000. He is a self-employed consultant
specialising in fish farming and European governance. He is based in Scotfand.

Trevor F. Hart (66) Chairman

Mr Hart was appointed as a nan-executive director in 2001 and appointed chairman in 2007. He is also a
director of certain subsidiary companies and its joint ventures. He is, ex officio, a member of all board
committees, He was previously a marine underwrlter with a Lloyds’ syndicate and is based in England.

Christopher J, Hilton {60)

Mr Hilton was appointed as a non-executive director in 2008 and is also a company nominated trustee
and chalrman of the trustees of the company's pension scheme. He was a pariner in Eversheds LLP,
retiring in 2010, but continues to act on a consuitancy basis. He was also a director of Newcastle Building
Society, retiring in 2010. He Is a director of Newcastle Strategic Solutions Ltd and Graig Shipping plc and
is chairman of NEPIA Employees Benefit Trust, He Is based in England.
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Peter M. Johnsan (62)

Mr Johnson was appointed as a& non-executive director in 2000. He s a self-employed chartered
accountant, and was previously a senior partner of KPMG, Newcastle. He is a director of Bellway plc,
Honorary Treasurer of both the University of Newcastie upon Tyne and of St. John Ambuiance,
Northumbria. He is a Trustee of the Newcastle University Development Trust and a feliow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is based in England.

Andrew L, Marr (68)

Mr Marr was appointed as a nen-executive director In 1981, He is Chalrman of Andrew Marr International
Limited and its subsidiaries. He is based In England.

Frederick 3. Mattera {59)

Mr Mattera was appointed as a non-executive director in 1998, He Is a commercial fisherman and
President of the Palnt Club, He is actively involved In marine safety training as head of NESTCo and Is a
director of the Commercial Fishing Vessel Safety Advisory Committee, US Coast Guard. He is based in the
USA.

Geoffrey C. Parkinson (55)

Mr Parkinson commenced employment with the company in 1972. He was appointed to the board as an
executive director in 1993, He is also a director of certain subsidiary companles and joint ventures. He Is
the Chief Executive Officer of the company and is based in England.

Thomas Rutter (50)

Mr Rutter commenced employment with the company in 1979. He was appointed to the board as an
executive director on 30% Jupe 2010. He is the Aquaculture Manager of the company and Is based in
England.

Peter 1. Talley (65)

Mr Talley was appointed as a non-executive director In 1990. He is the Managing Director of Talley’s
Fisheries Limited and is based In New Zealand.

Silas W, Taylor (58)

Mr Taylor was appointed as a non-executive director ot 22™ March 2011, He was a partner in law firm
Andrew Jackson, retiring in 2008, but continues to act on a consultancy basis. He Is based in England.

Christopher H. D. Venn (68)

Mr Venn was appointed as a non-executive director in 1999, He is a director of Ovenstone Limited and is
based in South Africa.

Angela C. Vipond (38)

Miss Vipond commenced employment with Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited in
1990. She was appointed to the board as an executive director on 30" June 2010, She is also a director
of certaln subsidiary companies and joint ventures, She is the Corporate Risk Manager of the company
and is based in England.

David M. Windmill (61)

Mr Windmill was appolnted as a non-executive director In 1996,

He was previously the Managing Dlrector of Marine Harvest Limited. He was also the Chief Executive of
The Royal Zoological Society of Scotland, retiring In February 2011. He is the Honorary Consul General

of Norway In Scotland and a trustee of the Great Steward of Scotland Dumfries House Trust. He s based
In Scotland,
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Directors’ Interests

Other than contracts of empleyment between the executive directors and the company, no director had a
material Interest at any time during the year In any contract of significance with the company or any of
its subsidiary undertakings. No director has an Interest in the equity of subsidiary undertakings.

Directors’ and officers’ Insurance and directors’ Indemnities

The company has purchased and maintained throughout the year directors’ and officers’ jiabllity
insurance in respect of the company and its directors. The directors are also entitled under the Articles of
Assoclation to be indemnified by the company agalnst costs, charges, losses, expenses and liability
incurred In the discharge of their duties, unless prohibited by statute.

All directors benefited from qualifying third party indemnity provislons in place during the financial year
and at the date of this report.

Political and charitable contributions

The group made charitable contributions during the year totalling £9,000 (2009: £26,000). No political
contributions were made (2009 £nil).

Payment of guppliers

The group’s policy Is to pay all of its creditors promptly and within the terms of the agreement made at
the time of supply. The amount owed to trade creditors at 31*' December 2010 represented eight days of
average daily purchases from suppliers during the year ended on that date.

Going concern

The directors are satisfled that the group has adequate resources ta continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. The going concern basis therefore continues to be adopted in preparing the
accournts.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they
are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware and
each directar has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of

any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that
information,

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 the auditors will be deemed to be reappointed and
KPMG Audit Pic will therefore continue in office,

By orden of the board
A' A

A.S. Rowland
Secretary
23rd March 2011

Company registration number; 16432



Sunderfand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Directors' Report on Corporate Governance
Yeat Ended 31* December 2010

The combined code
The board is committed to a high standard of corporate governance,

The board considers that, except where stated, throughout the year ended 31% December 2010, the
company has applied the relevant principles and complied with the relevant provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code published in June 2010,

‘The board
Composlition and balance

The board at 31% December 2010 comptised the non-executive chairman, twelve non-executive directors
and four executive directors. The non-executive directors bring to bear knowledge, experience and an
objective viewpaint to board decisions. The vice chairman fulfils the role of senfor non-executive director.
All the non-executive directors are independent. There are a number of board members with service
periods exceeding nine years, however each has been individually considered and Is belleved to remain
independent in both character and judgement and, having no relationships that are relevant to such
independence, their circurstances are not such as to require that their independent status should be
altered. Blographies of all the directors appear on pages 8 to 9. Membership of the board committees is
sat out on page 7. The hoard Is satisfied that this balance and range of expertise, experlence and
qualifications Is appropriate for the current needs of the business.

Role
The board deterimines the group’s:
. strategy and objectives, and monitors the group’s performance in achieving them;

. risk appetite;

- organisational structure; and

] remuneration policies.

The board:

» reviews the most significant risks affecting the group and the actlon being taken to manage or
mitigate them;

" appoints directors and approves senlor appointments;

= determines the responsibilities of the group chief executive and approves any delegation of his

responsibilities to heads of business units or support functions;
. monitors and reviews the group’s risk management policles and systems;
= determines the company's risk appetite;
x approves the annual report and accounts and significant regulatory returns; and
x reserves to itself certain decisions.
These reserved decislons include:

L the acquisition or disposal of any business or major asset, the setting-up of a new business or jeint
venture or the merging of any part of the group’s business with a third party;

= investment policy;
" approval of significant claims; and

" approval of reinsurance arrangements,
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Beneath the board there is in place clear and appropriate apportionment of responsibilities amongst the
executive directors and senlor managers.

How the board operates

The board meets five times a year, or more frequently, and ahead of these meetings the group chief
executive circulates a report on the performance of the group and on any other material matters, both
internal and external. This includes operational and financial information and reports on how the group
has performed agalnst key indicators. Reports are also provided on risk management and compiiance
matters.

Board committees

The board has established audit, defence advisory, executive, investment, nomination, remuneration,
risk, security and strategy committees.

Audit committee

The members of the audit committee are shown on page 7. The committee meets at least twice a year,
or more frequently If required, and its responsibilities Include:

. monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the group, including their compliance with
applicable laws and accounting standards, and any formal announcement relating to the group's
financlal perfarmance;

" reviewing significant financial reporting judgements;

" monitoring and reviewing the group’s internal financial controls and internal control systems,
including those relating to the prevention of financial crime;

" reviewing the external auditor's management letters and management’s response to them;

» reviewing reports from the compliance function and internal audit;

. making recommendations to the board for 1t to put to the members for their approval In general
meeting in relation to the appointment of the external auditors and their remuneration;

] approving non-audit work provided by the external auditors and the fees for such work;

. reviewing and monitoring the external auditor's independence and objectivity and the effectiveness

of the audit process; and
u reviewing whistle-blowing arrangements,
The external auditors, the company’s senior financial management, the corporate risk manager, general
counsel, the compliance officer and the external manager of internal audit attend meetings of the
committee as required.

In complylng with the combined code the board Is satisfied that at least one member of the audit
committee has recent and relevant financial experience.

The committee meets with the external auditors without the executive directors or representatives of
senior management present,

Defence advisory committee

The members of the defence advisory committee are shown on page 7. The commiitee meets once a
year or more frequently if required. It advises the board on the group’s defensive strategy.
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Executive committee

The members of the executive committee are shown on page 7. Meetings are held as circumstances
require. The duties of the committee are to be available to the chief executive and to advise on matters
relating to the management of the group requiring attention between board meetings. The committee
also considers other matters relating to the group upon which senior management may need guldance
with a view to making recommendations to the board.

Investment committee

The members of the Investment committee are shown on page 7. The committee meets five times a
year, or more frequently if required, and its responsibilities include:

= recommending the asset allocatlon benchmarks, the performance objectives and the performance
benchmarks for the group’s funds;

= making recornmendations to the board regarding guidelines for the management of foreign
exchange exposure; and

n monitoring the Investment performance of the group’s funds.
Nomination committee

The members of the nomination commiitee are shown on page 7. The committee meels at least once a
year, or more frequently If required, and Its responsibilities Include:

" reviewlng the structure, size and composition {including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the board and its committees and making recommendations to the board with regard to any
changes;

" nominating for board approval candidates to fill vacancies on the board and board committees;

u approving senior management recommendations far appolntments to senlor positlons;

] succession planning - taking Into account the challenges and opportunities facing the group and
skills and expertise needed on the beard in the future; and

. keeping under review the leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-executive,
with a view to ensuring the continued abiiity of the organisation to compete effectively in the
marketplace.

Remuneration committee

The members of the remuneration committee are shown on page 7 and are all non-executive directors,
The committee meets at least once a year, or more frequently if required, and its responsibilities Include
determining, for board approval, the policy for remunerating executive directors and other senior
executives. Non-executive directors’ remuneration Is determined by the board. The committee also
ensures that there is a coherent approach to remuneration In respect of ali employees.

Risk committee

The members of the risk committee are shown on page 7, The committee was formed In August 2010
and met once in the year. In future years it will meet at least four times a year or more frequently If
required. The committee considers all aspects of high level risk which may Impact on the business of the
group and ensures that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the effect of such
risk.

Security committee
The members of the security committee are shown on page 7. The committee meets at least once a year
or more frequently if required. It evaluates reinsurers, reinsurance intermediaries and other significant

counterparties, thus ensuring that the company's exposure to the fallure of a reinsurer, intermediary or
other counterparty is kept to a minimum.
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Sunderland Martne Mutual insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Report an Corporate Governance (continued)
Year Ended 31%' December 2010

Strategy committee

The members of the strategy committee are shown on page 7. The committee meets four times a year
or more freguently if required. It assists the board in relation to setting the company’s strategy, risk
appetite and specific corporate objectives. This includes regular review of detalled financlal and business
plans.

The terms of reference of all board committees are available on request.

Meetings and attendance

Number of
Forum members Attendance at Meeting
Feb| Mar[ 3Jun]| Au Sep | Nov| Dec

Board 14 (17 aner30.06.10 } 11 14 14 - 14 - 16
Audit 6 - 4 = - - 5 -
Defence 6 - 6 - - - - -~
Executive 4 - - - - 4 - 4
Investment 7 7 7 7 - 6 - 6
Nomination 4 4 4 4 - - - 4
Remuneration 3 3 3 3 - - - -
Risk 8 - - - - - -
Security 4 - 4 - - - - -
Strategy 5 - 5 - 4 - 5

“-* denotes no meeting.
Performance evaluation

The board has established a formal evaluation of its own performance, and that of its committees,
individual directors and the chalrman, which takes place on an annual basis. This includes completion of
questionnaires and face to face interviews, Questionnaires are completed in respect of the performance
of the board, its committees and the chairman. The chalrman carries out interviews and reviews the
responses to the questionnaires relating to board performance and reports through the nomination
committee to the board. The review of responses relating to the chalrman is the responsibility of the vice
chairman, who is also the chairman of the nomination committee.

Directors have the opportunity to update their skills and knowledge, either through presentations on key
issues and developments within the industry or by attendance at internal and external training courses.

The chairman meets periodically with the non-executive directors In the absence of the executive
directors, Further, the non-executive directors met once during the year in the absence of the chairman,
o appraise the chalrman’s performance.

Internal control

The system of Internal control

The group’s internal control system encompasses policies, processes, behaviours and other aspects of the
group that taken together:

- facilitate the effective and efficient operation of the group by assisting it to respond appropriately
to significant business, operational, finandial, compliance and other risks that could impact upon
the group’s abllity to meet its objectives; and

= are designed to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and internal policies.



Sunderiand Marine Mutua!l Insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Report on Corporate Governance {contlnued)
Year Ended 31* December 2010

The role of the board

The board Is ultimately responsible for the group’s system of internal control and for reviewing Its
effectiveness. The system Is desighed to manage rather than eliminate the risks of faflure to achieve
business objectives and, inevitably, can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The system has been in place throughout the period under review and
accords with the Code,

The board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the group’s system of internal control, This
covered all material controls, Including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management systems. It was conducted in part on an ongoing basls, via the reports submitted (both
routinely and on an ad hoc basis) to the board and the audit committee during the pericd under review,
and aiso by reports prepared as part of the year-end process.

The board has established a committee (the risk committee) to consider, monitor and review the gngoing
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the group. The
management of each business unit and support function ts responsible for identifying, evaluating, rating
(in terms of probability of occurrence and likely Impact), assigning responsibility for, reporting on, and
managing and mitigating all risks relevant to its area of business, including the design and operatfon of
suitable Internal controls, This is facilitated through the management risk committee, comprising key
members of the senlor executive management team and chaired by the corporate risk manager. The
committee meets monthly, or more frequently If required.

Risk management

The group has a risk management function which, in conjunction with the board risk committee:

» drafts risk policles and processes and develops the risk management framework;

" maintains and regularly updates a risk matrix that sets out all of the significant risks impacting on
the group and scores them In terms of probability and Impact;

" facilitates the risk management process by developing and monitoring the performance of risk tools
and methodologies;

" reports and makes recommendations to the group chlef executive and the board, via the Board
Risk Committee, on, for example, the risk matrlx and on the management of all categories of risk
including whether adequate risk management systems are In place, key risks are being properly

managed and whether changes should be made to the overall strategy for the management of risk;
and

" assists with achleving the objective of embedding risk management throughout the group, and with
managing risks impacting on the group and within the business units and support functions.

Compliance
The group has a compilance department which:
» monitors and enforces compliance with the requirements and rules of regulators;

m checks that systems and controls are in place to counter the risk that the group may be exposed to
practices linked with financial crime;

» develops a compliance plan and undertakes work in accordance with the plan; and

n co-ordinates the group’s relationships with its regulators.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Report on Corporate Governance {continued)
Year Ended 31° December 2010

Internal audit

The group has an Internal audit function, the management of which is outsourced, which:

= pravides management and the audit committee with independent and objective assurance on, and
evaluation of, the overall effectiveness of the group’s internal systems and controls, and risk
management and corporate governance processes;

= develops a three year strategic plan and an annual operating plan in conjunction with management
and the audit committee;

. conducts audits in line with that plan or additionally where required; and

" includes recommendations within all audit reports and monitors the implementation of these
recommendations.

Further information on risk management is contained in the directors’ report and note 1 to the financial
statements.

Relations with members

The company’s website at www.smml.co.uk contalns up to date information on the group. The company
pursyes a policy of personal contact and wide dialogue with members. Members can make contact in
person, by writing to the Company Secretary, Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited,
Salvus House, Aykley Heads, Durham, United Kingdom DH1 5TS or by email to mutual@smmi.co.uk.

Members are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting, at which directors are present, and to
ask questions. Proxy voting is permitted at ali general meetings of the company.

B& ordZ’ he board

A.S. Rowtan
Secretary
23rd March 2011



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Remuneration Report
Year Ended 31° December 2010

This report has nof been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companles Act 2006, section
421 and schedule B as the board feels that the structure and content of such a report Is inappropriate to
the company at the present time.

Remuneration committee

The role of the remuneration committee is set out in the directors’ report on corporate governance,

External independent advice is provided as considered approprlate to the committee and the board on the
remuneration of all directors and senior executives,

Remuneration
Salaries and fees

The salaries and fees of all directors are determined by considering the individual’s responsibllity and the
remuneration paid In companies of comparable size and nature.

Fees are earned by directors in respect of their position and also in respect of their responsibilities as a
member or as chairman of a board committee. In the case of executive directors, a salary is paid in
respect of day-to-day managerial and executive responsibilities.

Benefits

During the year beneflts offered to the executive directors were private medical insurance and either a
company car or a cash allowance.

Pensions

The executive directors are all members of a defined benefit penston scheme. Life assurance cover for
death in service Is provided for these directors and is four times pensionable earnings.

Executive directors’ service contracts

During the year the chief executive director had a contract of employment which provided for a year's
notice from either party., The chief executive director’s contract does not include compensation for
severance as a result of a change of contral, The employment contracts of the remaining three executive
directors provided for notice periods of: Thomas Rutter ~ 12 months, Alison Alden - 6 months and Angela
Vipond - 3 months.

Non-executive directors

The letters of appointment for non-executive directors include provisions in respect of termination.

The directors’ remuneration is disclosed in note 6.



Sunderiand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
Year Ended 31% December 2010

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the group and parent company fihancial statements In accordance with
UK Accounting Standards and appiicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair vlew of the state of affalrs of the group and parent company and of their profit

or loss for that period, In preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the
directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materiaj

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the golng concern basls unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the group and the parent company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the parent company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financlal statements comply with the
Companles Act 2006, They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other lrregularities,

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financlal information
included on the company's website. Legisiation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from {egislation in other jurisdictions,



Independent Auditor's Report
Year Ended 31% December 2010

Independent auditor's report to the members of Sunderland Matine Mutual Insurance
Company Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Sunderiand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited for
the year ended 31 December 2010 set out on pages 20 to 67, The financlal reporting framework that has
been applled In their preparation is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

This report s made solely to the company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them In an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anycne other than the company and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibllities Statement set out on page 18, the directors are
responsiblie for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and falr view. Our responsibllity is to audit, and express an oplnion on, the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Thosa
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB's website at
www frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company's affalrs as at 31°%
December 2010 and of the group's surplus for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Caompanies Act 2006

In our opinton the Information given In the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements,

Matters oh which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opfnion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
. the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and

returns; or
certain disciosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

on lw Holt {Senior Statutory Auditor)
r And on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Audltor
rtered Accountants
Quayside House
110 Quayside
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 3DX

23" March 2011



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account
Year Ended 31* December 2010

Technical account - general business

Note 2010 2009
£°000 £000
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 73,747 76,786
Outward reinsurance premiums (32,947) {16,538)
40,800 60,248
Change in the gross provision for unearned
premiums 25 1,826 272
Change in the provision for unearned premium,
reinsurers’ share 18 6,105 230
7,931 502
48,731 60,750
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid
Gross amount (53,152) (51,884)
Reinsurers’ share 13,832 6,375
(39,320) (45,509)
Change in provision for claims
Gross amount 25 5,936 {149)
Reinsurers’ share 18 1,691 4,630
7,627 4,481
(31,693) (41,028)
Net operating expenses before goodwill and
purchase costs (17,741) (21,585)
Goodwlll and purchase costs (1,335) (854)
Net operating expenses 5 (15,076) (22,439)
Other operating Income
Brokerage Income: group and share of joint ventures 3,881 4,019
Less: share of joint ventures’ brokerage Income (2,206} (2,178)
Group brokerage Income 1,675 1,841
Share of joint venture operating profit 3 199
Balance on the technical account - general business {360} (677)
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account (continued)
Year Ended 31% December 2010

Non-technical account — general business

Note 2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Balance on the technical account - general business {360} {(677)
Investment income 7 3,828 4,856
Unrealised {losses)/gains on investments 8 (31) 4,214
Investment expenses and charges g (461) {3,309}

us before goodwilland . U TR e
S e o431 5938

“Goodwill and purchase costs (4,335) o (8s4)
Operating surplus 10 2,976 5,084
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax i1 2,976 5,084
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 13 (421) (635)
Surplus on ordinary activities after tax 2,555 4,449
Minority interests (107) (103)
Surplus after taxation attributable to
members of the parent company for the financial year 2,448 4,346

In accordance with the amendment to FRS 3 published in June 1999 no note of historical cost profits
has been prepared as the group's only material gains and losses on assets relate to the holding and
disposal of investments.

The company has utilised the exemption within section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has
therefore not published its own income and expenditure account,

All results are derived from continuing operations.

21



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Galns and Losses
Year Ended 31* Decemnber 2010

Note 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Group surphus for the financial year 2,448 4,346
Foreign exchange rate movements 24 58 (188)
Actuarial surplus/{deficit) on pension scheme 35 21 {1,471)
Property revaluation 15 (161) -
Tota! gains recognised since the last
annual report 2,366 2,687
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Sunderiand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31% December 2010

Note 2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill 14 5,234 6,759
Investments
Land and buildings 15 8,583 8,791
Investment in group undertakings and participating
interests 16 714 776
Financial assets:
- Equity securities at fair value through income 17 4,097 3,842
- Debt securities at fair value through income 17 64,130 63,687
- Derivatives at fair value through income 17 348 402
- Deposits with credit institutions 9,521 11,862
87,393 89,360
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 18 14,264 7,559
Provision for uneamed commission 18 (4,097) (1,677)
Claims outstanding 18 13,698 11,132
23,865 17,014
Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 19 18,085 17,647
Debtors arising cut of reinsurance operations 20 5,914 2,334
Other debtors 21 2,022 2,369
26,031 22,350
Other assets
Tangible assets 22 1,366 611
Cash and cash equivalents 2,637 5912
4,003 6,523
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 812 940
Peferred acquisition costs 4,079 4,514
Other prepayments and accrued income 298 228
5,189 5,682
Total assets 151,715 147,688
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Sunderiand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limlited

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31% December 2010

Note 2010 2009
£'000 £000
Llabiiities
Capital and reserves
Reserves
Revaluation reserve 23 200 335
Other reserves: reserve fund 23 26,007 26,007
Income and expenditure account
accumulated surplus 23 19,823 17,322
Total capltal and reserves 24 46,030 43,664
Minority Interest 301 305
Technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums: gross amount 25 32,110 31,879
Claims ouistending: gross amount 25 50,945 54,438
83,055 86,317
Financial liabilitles
- Derivatives at fair value through income 27 227 343
- Creditors arising out of direct insurance
operations 1,984 1,915
- Creditors arising out of reinsurance
operations 28 8,350 2,786
- Borrowings 29 6,755 6,365
- Dther creditors, Including taxation and soclal
security 30 2,831 2,623
20,147 14,032
Accruals and deferred income 1,288 2,107
150,821 146,425
Pension fiability 35 894 1,263
Total liahliitles 151,715 147,688

These financlal statemeflts were approved by the board of directors on 23 March 2011 and were signed

on its behalf by:

T.F. Hart U-\:‘J «

Ad. Aiden Aty A0 (o

Company registration number: 16432
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

Company Balance Sheet:
As at 31% December 2010

Note 2010 2009
E£'000 £'000
Assets
Investments
Land and buiidings 15 8,118 8,271
Investments in group undertakings and
participating interests 16 27,467 32,573
Financial assets:
- Debt securities af falr vaiue through income 17 21,529 14,103
- Derlvatives at fair value through income 17 88 39
- Deposits with credit institutions 7,462 9,577
64,664 64,563
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provisfon for unearned premiums i8 29,388 26,576
Provision for unearned commission i8 (8,889) (6,535)
Claims outstanding 18 46,321 49,067
66,820 69,108
Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 19 17,942 17,431
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 20 5,914 2,301
Other debtors 21 1,130 1,048
24,986 20,780
Other assets
Tangible assets 22 1,138 442
Cash and cash equivalents 714 2,255
1,852 2,697
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 96 93
Deferred acquisltion costs 4,013 4,395
Other prepayments and accrued income 272 214
4,381 4,702
Total assets 162,703 161,850
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Company Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31% December 2010

Note 2010 2009
E£'000 £'000
Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Revaluation reserve 23 20,201 17,402
Other reserves: reserve fund 23 26,007 26,007
Income and expenditure account accumulated
(deficit)/surplus 23 (210) 112
Total capital and reserves 24 45,998 43,521
Technical provislons
Provision for unearned premiums: gross amount 25 31,339 31,189
Clalms outstanding: gross amount 25 50,717 54,259
82,056 85,448
Financial liabilitles
- Derivatives at falr value through income 27 182 306
- Creditors arising out of direct Insurance
operations 2,072 1,925
- Creditors arising out of reinsurance
operations 28 22,548 17,412
- Borrowings 29 6,148 5,216
- Other creditors, including taxation and social
security 30 1,380 5,419
32,730 30,278
Accruals and deferred income 1,025 1,340
161,809 160,587
Penslon liabiiity 35 894 1,263
Tota! liabilities 162,703 161,850

These financial stat
slgned on Its behalf

"
Al Alden A4 ¢t o (o

1.F. Hart

Company registration number: 16432
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year Ended 31% December 2010

Note 2010 2009
Operating actlvities £Q00 £'000
Net cash outflow from operating activities 32 (7,145) {1,869)
Dividends received from joint venture a5 122
Interest paid
Bank Interest paid (252) (349)
Taxation
UK corporation taX recaovered 104 37
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible flxed assets {1,055) (163)
Sale of tangibie fixed assets 62 37
Acquisition
Acquisition of undertakings - (2,127)
Contingent consideration adjustment to goodwill 173 -
Financing
Repayment of ioan (555) (5,151)
Dividend pald by subsldiary undertaking (105) (51)
(Expense)/proceeds from settlement of derivatives (648) 1,259
(9,326) (8,255)
Cash flows were Invested as follows: . ‘
Decrease in cash holdings 33 (7,639) {10,811)
Portfolio investments
Purchase of property - 538
Purchase of equity securities at fair value through income - 183
Purchase of debt securities at fair value through income 94,885 59,442
Sale of equity securities at fair value through income (29) {17,136)
Sale of debt securlties at fair value through income {96,543) {50,481)
Net investment of cash flows {9,326) {8,255)
Movement In opening and closing portfolio investments net of financing
Net cash outfiow for year (7,639) (10,811}
Cash flow - portfolio Investments (1,687) 2,556
- decrease in loans 555 5,151
Movement arising from cash flows 33 (8,771) {3,104)
Chanages In market values and exchange rate effects 33 3,255 1,603
Total movement in portfolio investments net of financing {5,516) (1,501)
Portfolic investments net of financing at 1* January 87,729 83,230
Portfolio investments net of financing at 31% December 33 82,213 87,729
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Fnded 31% December 2010

Accounting policles

Basis of presentation

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
consldered material to the group’s financial statements, except as noted below.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except that
certain investments have been revalued, Derivative financial Instruments and financial assets at fair value
through Income are measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 396 of
Companies Act 2006 and with the Association of British Insurers’ Statement of Recommended Practice on
Accounting (ABI SORP) for Insurance Business dated December 2005 (as amended December 2006),

The group’s business actlvitles, performance and financial position are set out in the directors’ report
and financial statements. The company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing risk and
capital are shown below. ‘

The company has considerable financlal resources, a portfolio well diversified both by product and
geographical area together with a robust reinsurance programme. As a consequence, the directors
helieve that the company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current
uncertain economic outiook.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foresesable future. They thus continue to adopt the going concern basls of
accounting In preparing the annual financial statements.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires judgements and estimates to be made and
assumptions fo be used that affect the application of accounting policles and the reported amounts of
assets, liabllities, Income and expenses, Actual results may vary from the estimates.,

Estimates and the underiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period In which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the company's accounting policies are described
below:

Claims made under Insurarnice contracts

The group recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions
which could differ when clalms arise.

The estimates for reported and unreported losses and the resulting provisions and related reinsurance
recoverles are continually reviewed and updated and adjustments resulting from these reviews are
reflected in the income and expenditure account in the period in which the estimate is revised and In
any future periods affected.

The process used to determine the assumptions is intended to result in neutra! estimates of the most
likely or expected outcome.

There Is more emphasis on current trends, and where In early years there is insufficient information to
make a reliable best estimate of claims developrent, prudent assumptions are used.

The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any
particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate
basis with due regard to the claim circumstances, Information avallable from loss adjusters and
historical evidence of the size of simllar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated
as and when new information arises.
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sunderiand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 December 2010

Useful economic life of goodwill

The group recognises that the process of estimating the useful economic life of goodwlll is based on
certaln variables and assumptions that could change over time,

The estimates of the useful econamic life of goodwill are regularly reviewed and updated and any
adjustments resulting from these reviews are reflected in the income and expenditure account in the
period in which the estimate Is revised and in any future periods affected.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements indude the financlal statements of the company and all
subsidiaries, adjusted where appropriate to conform to group accounting policies. Their financial
statements are made up to 31st December. The financlal statements of subsidiaries are included In the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases,

Investments in group undertakings and associated undertakings are stated at current value In the
company’s own balance sheet. Increases in valuation are recognised In the revaluation reserve.
Decreases In valuation recognised in the revaluation reserve to the extent that they reverse previously
recognised revaluation gains. Any downwards revaluation in excess of an amount previously recognised
In the revaluation reserve is recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Associated undertakings and joint ventures

In the group financial statements, Interests in associated undertakings and joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting. The consolidated income and expenditure account inciudes
the group's share of the operating results, interest, pre-tax results and taxation of such undertakings
based on audited financlal statements for the year. In the consclidated balance sheet, the Interests in
associated undertakings and joint ventures are shown as the group's share of the net assets or
liabilities, exclusive of any goodwill. The premium paid on acquisition Is amortised over lts estimated
useful economic life.

Premiums

Premiums are charged at the amounts which it Is estimated will meet claims, reinsurance premiums,
expenses and other costs of the policy year to which they relate.

Premiums wrliten are accounted for in the year in which the risk commences. Where applicable the
unearned proportlons of the premiums, relating to periods of risk extending beyond the end of the
financlal year, are carried forward to the next accounting period,

All premiums are shown gross of commission payable to intermediaries and are exclusive of taxes and
duties levied thereon,

Unearned premiums are calculated on a time apportionment basis using the daily pro rata method.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
Year Ended 31° December 2010

Accounting policies (continued)

Outward reinsurance premijums, related commissions and profit commissions are accounted for in the
same accounting period as the premiums for the related direct insurance or inward reinsurance
business.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs comprise the expenses, both direct and indirect, of acquiring insurance policies written
during the financial year. Acquisition costs which relate to a subsequent financlal year are deferred and
charged to the accounting periods In which the related premiums are earned. Deferred acquisition costs
represent the proportion of acquisition costs Incurred which corresponds to the proportion of gross
premiums written which are unearned at the balance sheet date.

Unexpired risks

Provision Is made where the cost of claims and expenses arising after the end of the vear from
contracts concluded before that date is expected to exceed the provision for unearned premiums, net of
deferred acquisition costs, and premiums receivable. The assessment of whether a provision is
necessary is made by reference to classes of business which are managed together.

Management charges

Management charges were payable up to 30" June 2009 under the terms of a management agreement
calculated on the basis of the costs incurred by Salvus Bain (Management) Limited and its subsidiary
companies. From the date of the group restructure no management charges were payable to Salvus
Bain (Management) Limited and its subsidiary companies.

Ciaims

Outstanding claims comprise provisions for the estimated cost of settling all clalms incurred up to but
not paid at the balance sheet date and are determined on an individual case basis after taking into
account handling costs, salvage and other recoveries, anticipated inflation and trends in settlernents.
Provision s also made in respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR claims) as at 31st December
based on statistical methods. Proviston is also made for all claims handling expenses to cover the
anticipated future costs of negotiating and settling claims which have been incurred, whether reported
or not, up to the balance sheet date. In determining the provislon for claims handling expenses it has
been assumed that the activity of the clalms handling department wili remain at its current level.

The main statistical method used for review of reserve adequacy is the chain ladder triangulation
method, This methed Involves taking current and prior year premiums and claims developments and
projecting potential ultimate outcomes for each class, year and currency. The main assumption behind
this method Is that development patterns will remain relatively constant, although specific events and
occurrences are taken into account.

The relnsurers’ share of provisions for ciaims Is based on calculated amounts for outstanding claims and
projections for IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts having regard to the reinsurance
programme in place for the class of business, the claims experience for the year and the current
security rating of the reihsurance companies involved.

Although provisions for claims are based upon the information currently avatiable to the directors,
subsequent information and events may show that the ultimate liability Is less than, or in excess of, the
amount provided. The methods used, and estimaies made, are continually reviewed and any resulting
adjustments are reported in the technical account for general business in the financial year in which the
claims are settled or re-appraised.

Intra-group funding

All financlal guarantees in respect of intra-group funding between the company and its subsidlaries are
treated as insurance contracts In accordance with FRS 12 ‘Provisions, contingenf assets and liabilities’.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Financlal Instruments

Non-derivative financlal investments are classified as financial assets at falr value through income.
Non-dertvative financial investments are classified in this category If acquired principally for the purpose
of seliing in the shott term or if so designated by the group. The group has designated non-derivative
financlal investments at fair value through income where the group’s strategy Is to manage those financlal
investments on a falr value hasis.

Non-derivative financial investments classified at fair value through income are initially recognised and
subsequently measured at falr value in the balance sheet with transaction costs taken directly to the
income and expenditure account. All changes In fair value are recognised In income as described In the
‘Investment income’ accounting policy. The bases for determining the fair value of all financial assets and
of the derivative liabilities is as set out In notes 17 and 27.

The group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposure and to support
the equity investment return. Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and are classifled as
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through income, Derivative financial instruments are
measured at initlal recognition, and subsequently, at fair value and changes in falr value are recognised
in the income and expenditure account. Transactlon costs incurred in buying and selling derivative
financial instruments are recognised In the income and expenditure account when incurred. The fair
value of a derivative financdial instrument is determined by reference to published price quotations In an
active market,

Note 17 sets out the amount of each class of financial asset that has been designated at fair value through
income,

Recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments

A financial Instrument Is recognised if the group becomes a party to the contractuai provisions of the
instrument, Financial assets are de-recognised if the group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire or if the group transfers the financlal asset to ancther party without retaining
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised if the
group’s obligations specified in the contract explre or are discharged or cancelled.

Investment income

Investment income comprises gains or losses arising from changes in the falr value of financlal assets at
fair value through Income. It also comprises interest receivable on short term and bank deposits
accounted for on an accruals basis. Dividends are inciuded as Investment income on the date that the
shares become quoted ex-dividend, exclusive of any attributable tax credits. Investment income also
includes rental income,

Land and bulidings

All freehold properties are being depreciated in accordance with FRS 15 ‘Tangible fixed assets’. The
freehold property is valued every three years by a qualified external valuer in accordance with the
Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Increases in valuatlon are recognised in the revaluation reserve. Decreases In valuation are recognised
in the revaluation reserve to the extent that they reverse previously recognised revaluation gains. Any
downwards valuation in excess of an amount previously recognised In the revaluation reserve is
recognised in the income and expendlture account.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Fixed assets and depreciation

All fixed assets are initlally recorded at cost.
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Accounting policles (continued)

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less Its estimated residual value, over
the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Frechold bulidings - 2% straight line

Fixtures & fittings - 12,5% - 33.3% straight line
Motor vehicles - 20% - 33.3% reducing balance
Computers - 20% - 33.3% straight line

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the falr value of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries and assoclated undertakings at the time of acquisition.
Goodwill Is capitalised in the balance sheet and amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated
useful economic life. The methodology for amortising goodwill over its estimated useful economic life is
disclosed in note 14.

Loans and debtors

Loans and debtors are measured at amortised cost. The company reviews the carrying value of its
loans and debtors on a regular basls, If the carrying value of a loan or debtor is greater than the
recoverable amount, the cartying value Is reduced through a charge to the income and expenditure
account in the period of impairment.

Deferred taxation

Where the different treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes results in an
obligation to pay more or a right to pay less tax in the future deferred tax is recognised in respect of
such timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date with certain
limlted exceptions. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated
on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantlally enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Operating lease agreements

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership
remain with the lessor are charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease.

Post-ratirement benefits

The company operates a defined beneflt penslon scheme for employees. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from the assets of the company. Pension scheme assets are measured using market
values. For quoted securltles the current bid price Is taken as market value, Penslon scheme liabllities
are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high
quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.

The pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it Is recoverable) or deflcit is recognised in full. The
movement in the scheme surplus or deficit is allocated between operating charges, finance items and,
in the statement of total recognised gains and losses, actuarial gains and losses.

The group also operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the company in independently administered funds. The amounts
charged to the income and expenditure account represent the contributions payable to the schemes in
respect of the accounting period,
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Accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currency
The financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the group’s presentation currency.

The functional currency of a group entity is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
It operates,

A group entlty whose functional currency is not Sterling Is a forelgn operation. The income and
expenses of forelgn operatlons are translated Into Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transactions. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Sterling at the rate of
exchange prevalling at the reporting date and the resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
statement of total recognised gains and losses,

Foreign currency transactions are transactions undertaken by a group entity other than in its functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the rate of exchange prevalling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recognised in the income and expenditure account,

Non-monetary assets and liabllities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Forelgn exchange
differences arising on translation are recognised In the income and expenditure account.

Realised exchange galns and losses arising from cross currency funding are dealt with in the non-

technical account. Other exchange gains and losses and translation differences are dealt with in the
technical account.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The group’s management of insurance and financial risk is a critical aspect of the business. The group
has a number of procedures in place to manage these risks which are explained in detall below.

Governance framework

The primary cbjective of the group’s risk and financial management framework Is to protect the group’s
members from events that hinder the achievement of financial performance objectives. A group policy
framework has been put In place that sets out the risk profiles for the group and the board and risk
committee regularly approves the group risk management policies.

Capital management framework

The group has an internal risk management framework for identifying risks to which the group is
exposed and to quantify their impact on economic capital, The internal framework indicates how much
capital Is needed to mitigate the risk of capital exhaustion to a confidence level of 99.5% over one year.
The group has a finance committee consisting of senlor management which meets regularly to evaluate
the capital allocations and adequacy within different jurisdictions In which the group operates.

Regulatory framework

One of the objectives of the group’s primary regulatar is to protect the rights of the members. The
regulator monitors the group closely to ensure that It Is satisfactorily managing affalrs for the members’
benefit. At the same time the regulator is also interested in ensuring that the group maintains an
appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities.

The operations of the group are also subject to regulatory requirements within furisdictions where it
operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose
certain requirements (e.g. capital adequacy) to mintmise the risk of default and Insolvency.

Asset liability management framework

The group has exposure to risks arising from movements in interest rates, currenclies and equity prices,
al! of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The principal technique used by
the group is to match financlal assets to liabilities in the same currency. The group also ensures that
there is sufficient cash flow available to meet liabilities as they fail due,

Specific risks that the group is exposed to and how they are managed by the group are explained
below.

SU ris
The group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
The principai risk the group faces under insurance contracts Is that actual claims payments or the
timing thereof, differ from expectations, This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of

claims and the subsequent development of long-tail claims.

The objective of the group is to ensure that sufficient technical provisions are available to cover these
liabilities.

This risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geagraphical areas. The variability of risks is also reduced by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategy guldelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.
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The group reinsures a portion of the risks it underwrites In order to control Its exposure to losses and
protect capital resources. The group buys a combination of proportional and non-proportional
refnsurance to reduce the net exposure to the group. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated In a2 manner consistent with the outstanding ciaims provision and are in accordance with the
reinsurance contracts. Although the group has reinsurance arrangements, it Is not relleved of its direct
obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the
extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements,
The group's placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it Is nor dependent on a single reinsurer,

The group has also limited its exposure by the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to Hmit
exposure to catastrophic events.

Strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims
handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are all policies and
procedures put In place to reduce the risk exposure of the group.

The group further enforces a policy of actively managing claims in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments that can adversely impact the group.

The table below sets out the concentration of the group’s technical provisions excluding reinsurance
commission by type of contract:-

2010 2009

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Marine 70,324 17,679 52,645 72,351 8,050 64,301
Aquaculture 12,731 10,283 2,448 13,966 10,641 3,325
Total 83,055 27,962 55,093 86,317 18,691 67,626

The geographical concentration of the group’s technical provisions excluding reinsurance commission is
noted below. The disclosure is based on the countries where the business Is written.

2010 2009
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Relnsurance Net
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000
Australasia 14,876 5,877 8,999 14,007 2,477 11,530
Europe 12,968 4,703 8,265 13,468 3,636 9,832
North America 34,348 14,361 15,987 33,681 8,953 24,728
United Kingdom 11,025 394 10,631 11,533 882 10,651
COthers 9,838 2,627 7,211 13,628 2,743 10,885
Total 83,055 27,962 55,093 86,317 18,691 67,626
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Claims development

The group aims to maintain strong technical provisions In respect of its insurance business In order to
protect against adverse future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate
cost of claims becomes more certain, potential adverse clatims experiences are reduced which can result
in the release of technical provisions from these earller accident years,

The following table reflects the cumuiative incurred claims including both clalms notified and incurred
but not reported (IBNR) for each successive accident year at the balance sheet dates,

Gross claims Incurred

2006 2007 2008 2008 2010
£'000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000
Accident year at end of
Accident year 43,628 59,646 46,381 54,648 47,426
One year later 43,542 56,077 45,207 55,514
Two years later 42,947 56,345 44,369
Three years later 42,206 56,269
Four years later 41,867

Fl Lt e k

The group also has exposure to the following risks from its financial instruments:-

Credit risk
Liguidity tisk
Market risk

Information is presented about the group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the group's objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks and the group’s management of capital.

Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet Its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the group. This risk arises principally from the
group’s reinsurance debtors, premium debtors and financial assets. The following policies and
procedures are n place to mitigate the group’s exposure to credit risk.

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating. Management performs an
assessment of credit-worthiness of reinsurers and updates the securlty committee on a regukar basls to
ensure all the reinsurers on the maln reinsurance programmes are A rated or above,

The group also employs reinsurance intermedlaries that are subject to the regulation and approval of
the Financial Services Authority in the UK and as such are required to operate client trust accounts to
ring-fence the amounts held on thelr client’s behalf.

The group’s exposure to credit risk from premium debtors is Influenced mainly by the Indlvidual
characteristics of each customer,

The credit risk In respect of customer balances incurred on non-payment of premium wili only persist
during the payment period specified in the policy document. If payment is still outstanding when the
payment period expires the policy can be cancelled. If a member has ceased to be insured by the
company, the cormnpany will not be liable for any ciaims under the company’s general conditions if the
Incident giving rise to such clalim occurred after the cessation of insurance.

Investment related credit risk is managed through the {nvestment guidellnes issued to the fixed income
managers. The guidelines impose strict diversification limlts by credit rating, maturity and per issuer.
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The maximum expgsure to credit risk amounts to £102,319,000 (2009: £103,811,000). This exposure
includes all financial assets (with the exception of equities and derivatives) as detaliled in note 31. The
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with credit Institutions, inward
reinsurance operatfons and direct Insurance operations Is not considered significant. The following table
summarises the group's exposure to credit risk by rating the debt securities and outward reinsurance

debtors.
2010 2009

Rating Debt OCutward Debt Outward
securities relnsurance securities reinsurance
debtors debtors
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
AAA 42,666 - 32,826 -
AA 2,933 3,354 5,866 1,235
A 10,679 2,027 11,688 72
BBB 5,255 268 9,185 203
BB 1,761 - 1,667 -
B 572 - 2,284 -
CCC 220 - 118 -
Not rated 44 - 53 20
Total 64,130 5,649 63,687 1,530

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the group will encounter difficuity in meeting its financial obligations as
they fall due. The group’s approach to managing liguidity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabllities when due. The group monitors its forecast liquidity
position by estimating the cash outflows from its insurance contracts and purchasing investments with

similar durations to meet these obligations.

The following trable summarises the contractual maturities of the group’s financial liablilitles.

At 31° December 2010 No Less 1-2 Total
contractual than one years
maturity year

E'000 £°000 £000 £'000
Derivative financial liabilities - 227 - 227
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 1,984 - - 1,984
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 8,350 - - 8,350
Borrowings 6,148 461 223 6,832
Other creditors, Including taxation and soclal
security 1,805 1,026 - 2,831
Total 18,287 1,714 223 20,224
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At 31* December 2009 No Less 1-2 2-5 Total
contractual thanone years vyears
maturity year

£'000 £'000 EOD0 £000 £°000

Derivative financial liabllities - 343 - - 343
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 1,915 - - - 1,915
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 2,786 - - - 2,786
Borrowings 5,216 486 474 232 6,408
Other credltors, including taxation and social

security 2,086 537 - - 2,623
Total 12,003 1,366 474 232 14,075

Fair value hierarchy

In May 2009 the Accounting Standards Board issued ‘Amendments to FRS29 - Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instruments’. The amended FRS requires certaln additional disciosures to be Included in
the financial statements. These Include, as Is presented below, a table of financial Instruments carried
at fair value analysed by their level as defined by the fair value hierarchy in the FRS. This hierarchy is
based on the inputs to the fair value measurement and reflects the lowest level input that is significant
to that measurement.

The classification criteria and their application to the group can be summarised as foilows:

Level 1 - active quoted prices
items In this category are valued using unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for ldentical
assets and liabilities.

Level 1 principally includes exchange listed equities, exchange traded derlvatives such as futures and
options and government bonds and equivalents, unless there Is evidence that trading in a given
Instrument is so infrequent that the market cannot be considered active.

Level 2 - other observable market-derived Inputs
Items In this category are valued using inputs other than quoted prices as included within level 1 that
are observable either directly {l.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

level 2 principally includes corporate bonds and other non-national government debt securities and
forward exchange contracts which are valued using observable inputs and non~quoted investment funds
valued with observable inputs.

Level 3 - uncohservable inputs
Items in the category would be valued on a basls using significant inputs for the asset or liabtlity that
are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Level 3 principally includes commercial mortgage backed securities and non-investment grade corporate
bonds.

The group holds a significant portfollo of government and corporate bonds, structured securities and
other debt securities. These assets are valued by independent investment managers and are subject to
their monitoring controls.
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The table below summarises the fair value measurement basis used for assets and liabilities held at fair
value,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
At 31° December 2010 Active Other
quoted observable Unobservable
prices Inputs inputs Total
£'000 £'000 £000 E£°000
Financlal assets
Equity securities at falr value through income 4,097 - - 4,097
Debt securitles at fair valye through income 19,407 43,665 1,058 64,130
Derivatives at fair value through income 129 219 - 348
Deposits with credit Institutions 9,521 - - 9,521
33,154 43,884 1,058 78,096
Financial liabilities
Derivatives at fair value through income {182) (45) - (227)
Restatad
At 31° December 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Active Other
quoted observable Unobservable
prices inputs inputs Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Equity securitles at fair value through Income 3,842 - - 3,842
Debt securities at falr value through income 21,645 41,063 979 63,687
Derjvatives at falr value through income 307 95 - 402
Deposits with credit Institutions 10,577 1,285 - 11,862
36,371 42,443 979 79,793
Financial liabilities
Derivatives at falr value through income (343) - - (343)

Guidance on classification between the various levels contlnues to evoive. Formerly certaln debt
securities whose fair value Is determined using prices from brokers, dealers and/or pricing services
were classified in Level 1 If the quoted prices Indicated the market for those securities was actively
trading., Based upon recent guidance issued by the Committee of European Securlties Regulators
{CESR), the company now classifies these securities in Level 1 only if it can be demonstrated on an
individual security basis that these are quoted in an active market, i.e. that the price quotes obtained
are representative of actual trades In the market (through obtaining binding quotes or through
corroboration to published market prices). Otherwise, these are classified in Level 2. Comparatives
for 2009 have been stmilarly reclassified with the most significant movements from Level 1 to Level 2
at the end of 2009 being in respect of corporate bonds,
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The table below shows the reconclliation of movements in level 3 investments during the year:

Toatal

£'000

Balance at 1% January 2010 979
Purchases 606
Sales (268)
Realised loss (48)
Unrealised loss (211)

Balance at 31% December 2010 1,058

The realised losses are included within investment income In the Income and expenditure account.
The unrealised losses are included within unreallsed (losses)/gains on investments in the income and
expenditure account.

The majority of the group’s investiments are valued based on quoted market information or other
observable market data. A small percentage (1.4%) of assets recorded at fair value are based on
estimates and recorded as level 3 investments. Where estimates are used, these are based on a
combination of independent third party evidence and internally developed models, calibrated to
market abservable data where posslble, While such valuations are sensitive to estimates, It is
believed that changing one or more of the assumptions to reascnably possible alternative
assumptions would not change the fair value significantly,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk; foreign exchange rates
{currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (prices risk).

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters whilst optimising the return on risk.

The group’s exposure to changes in interest rates and market prices Is concentrated in the investment
partfolio,

The group manages its investment portfolio in accordance with an investment framework that is
approved by the directors. The framework is used to defermine both the investment policy and to
establish the investment risk appetite. In this context the overall risk is reviewed on a regular basls
and the asset allocation is adjusted to ensure it reflects the investment risk appetite,

The detalied consideration of group Investment strategy is the responsibility of the Investment
committee, a committee of the board. Investment management Is cutsourced and the performance of
investment managers against their respective benchmarks is monitored on a monthly basis. There is
also a formal quarterly review of performance and measurement of portfolio risk by the Investment
committee and, through it, the board.

The asset class allocation alms to ensure that the group’s technical liabllities are matched against assets
by currency and maturity, In additlon, the group ensures minimal risk Is taken with the committed
regulatory capltal. An overall investment risk budget is estabilshed annually by the board. Asset
allocatlon is determined by reference to the risk budget and strictly monitored and controlled.
Diversification is used where possible as a means of minimising volatility, whilst observing necessary
risk constraints.

Known claims liabilities of the group are matched by currency and maturity to fixed income assets
providing appropriate security and liquidity to facilitate expeditious settlement of claims. The remainder
of the portfalic, being invested from free reserves, Is aliocated to a more diversified bond mandate with
a small aliocation to other higher yleiding assets which are expected to produce higher absoiute returns
in the long-term,
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a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company operates Internationally and its exposures
to foreign exchange risk arise primarily with respect to the US, Canadian, Australian, New Zealand, Euro
and South African currencies.

The group's financlal assets are primarily denominated In the same currencies as its liabilities (including
forward currency contracts) which mitigate the foreign exchange rate risk of the overseas operations,
Cross currency funding underpinning regional regulatory capital requirements is effectively managed by
the group through derivative financial Instruments as forward currency contracts are put in place to
reduce the currency exposure,

Forward currency contracts are used to reduce the group’s exposure to fluctuations in currency
conversion rates between Sterling and other currencies so that the group’s net assets are not
significantly affected.

The table below summarises the group’s exposure to forelgn currency exchange rate risk by
categorising the assets and liabllities by major currencies.

At 31 December 2010 Assets Liabilities Net assets/ Forward Net
(liabilities) contracts assets/

(liabllitlies)

after

forward

contracts

£'000 £000 £000 £000 £°000

Australian Dollars 20,515 13,146 7,369 {7,144) 225
Canadian Dollars 23,867 19,023 4,844 (6,949) (2,105)
Euro 10,576 15,033 (4,457) 2,897 (1,560)
New Zealand Dollars 3,585 4,108 (523) 1,016 493
US Dollars 25,048 32,105 (7,057) 7,124 67
South African Rand 3,188 1,363 1,825 (975) 850
86,779 84,778 2,001 (4,031) {2,030)

Sterling 64,936 20,907 44,029 4,031 48,060
151,715 105,685 46,030 - 46,030

At 31° December 2009

Australian Dollars 15,837 10,369 5,468 (6,002) {534)
Canadian Dollars 19,001 17,547 1,454 (1,783) (329)
Euro 11,243 18,044 (6,801) 7,086 285
New Zealand Dollars 2,721 3,696 {975) 1,135 160
US Dollars 23,720 36,515 (12,795) 10,846 (1,949)
South African Rand 2,579 946 1,633 (845) 788
75,101 87,117 {12,016} 10,437 (1,579)

Sterling 72,587 16,907 55,680 {10,437) 45,243
147,688 104,024 43,664 - 43,664
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b)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk arises primarily from the
nature and term of investments held and is managed through the buying and selling of appropriate
fixed interest securities of different durations.

The group uses a number of sensitivity management toois to understand the volatility of earnings, The
table below shows the effects of a 0.5% increase or decrease in interest rates on earnings from debt
securities:;

2010 2009
£'000 £'000

0.5% Increase In interest rates (188) {176)
0.5% decrease in interest rates 203 166

c) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The group is exposed to price risk as a resuit of its holdings in
equity investments and debt securities,

The group’s price risk policy reguires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and
constraints on investments, limits on investments in each country, sector and market and careful and
planned use of derivative financial instruments.

The table below shows the anticlpated change In equity and alternative Investment market values from
a 10% Increase or decrease in underlying prices:

2010 2009
£000 £000

10% increase in equity price 410 384
10% decrease in equity price (410) (384)

The table above demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption whilst other assumptions
remain unchanged. It should be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller
Impacts shouid not be extrapolated or interpoiated from these resuits. The sensitivity analyses do not
take into consideration that the group’s assets and llabilitles are actively managed. Management
actlons could Include selling Investments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking other
protective action. In additlon, the financlal position of the group may vary at the thme that any actual
market movement occurs.

io s

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system fallure, human error, fraud or external events,
When controls fall to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or
regulatory Implications or can lead to financial loss. The group cannot expect to elimipate all
operational risks, but by Initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risks, the group Is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties,
access controls within the IT environment, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processes and Internat audit.
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Group risks

Group risk Is the potential for one of the subsidiaries to fall, or for adverse events in a subsidiary having
a significant impact on the group. These risks are mitlgated by the use of procedures and controls,
which aim to be as consistent as possible throughout the group. Additionally, head office provides
functionality and oversight to group companies providing additional control.

Capltal management

The required caplital, as measured by the UK Financial Services Authority’s (FSA's) Required Minimum
Margin (RMM) Is determined by the application of a formula that contains variables for premium and
claims, expenses and reserves. The company also submits to its domiciliary regulator an annual
Enhanced Capltal Requirement (ECR) calculation and an Individual Capital Assessment (ICA) as
required.

The company is required to maintain sufficient capital locally to provide solvency coverage for Ks
operations In Australia, New Zealand, South Africa, the United States and Canada, in line with the
applicable jocal regulations. The company has capital management procedures in place to ensure that
such overseas requirements are complied with at all times, As part of this process the group has,
where appropriate, deveioped its own more robust internal solvency calculations to ensure compliance
with the regulatory minima. The company met the requirements of the RMM and ECR throughout 2010.

The group capital comprises the capital and reserves of £46,030,000 shown In the consolidated balance
sheet. The company manages capital on an adjusted solo solvency basis as prescribed by the FSA
which includes the capital of SM Insurance (Bermuda) Limited. This core tier one capital was
£45,696,000 as at 31% December 2010 (2009: £43,423,000) of which a total of £20,400,000 (2009:
£14,100,000) was held in local currency to support local solvency requirements in Austraifa, USA,
Canada and New Zealand.

At 31% December 2010, the Insurance subsidiary Sunderland Marine (Africa) Limited held regulatory
capital of £1,619,000 {2009: £1,261,000).

2. Analysls of premiums, result before taxation and net assets

On the grounds that the information is commercially sensitive the directors of the company have
taken advantage of the exemption from disclosure that is available within SSAP 25 and therefore
disciosure of the geographical analysis of gross premium income, result before taxation and net
assets has not been provided.

3. Analysis of gross direct written premlums

Gross direct written premiums resulting from contracts concluded:

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

In the United Kingdom 11,681 12,979
In other countrles 60,883 61,254
72,564 74,233

4, Prior years’ claims provisions

Over/(under) provisions for claims at the beginning of the year compared to payments and
provisions at the end of the year in respect of prior years’ claims are as follows:

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Direct 2,691 5,227
Inward reinsurance (95) (474)
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Net operating expenses

2010 2009

£000 £000
Acquisition costs 11,898 11,940
Change in deferred acquisition costs 435 499
Administration expenses 13,797 12,816
Relnsurance commissions and profit participation (9,326) (3,017)
Change in unearned reinsurance commission 2,272 201

19,076 22,439

Particulars of employees

The average number of staff employed by the group during the financial year amounted to:

2010 2009

No No

Number of staff — full time 111 113
Number of staff - part time 8 8
115 121

Staff employed by joint venture companies 58 58
177 179

The aggregate payroll costs of the staff employed by the group were:

2010 2009
£'000 £°000
Wages and salaries 6,133 5,861
Social security costs 424 411
Staff pension contributions 878 714
Directors’ penston contributions 24 -
7,459 6,986

The directors’ aggregate emoluments, including pension contributions, in respect of qualifying
services were:

2010 2009
£000 £000
Emoluments recelvable 1,258 826
Value of company penslon contributions to defined benefit
schemes 24 -
1,282 826
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8.

Fees of £59,221 {2009: £51,325) payable to one director were paid, with the addition of VAT, to
his company, Sandwood Services Limited, Fees of £10,217 (2009: £21,312) for Mr C.), Hilton
were paid to Eversheds LLP, covering the period up to 30™ April 2010 when he retired from
Eversheds, with the balance of fees due pald directly to him.

These disclosures include amounts relating to directors of the company In respect of their
positions as directors of subsidiary companies where appropriate,

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £509,417 (2009: E378,082)
including pension contributions of £nil (2009: £nil). His accrued penslon at the year-end was
£146,618 (2009; £141,444) and his accrued lump sum was £450,000 (2009: £437,500). The
aggregate emoluments include deferred bonuses refating to 2006 and 2007.

Four directors accrued benefits under a company pension scheme {2009:1).

Investment income

2010 2009

£'000 £°000

Interest income: group and share of joint ventures 510 469
Less: share of joint ventures’ interest Income (2) (5)
508 464

Gains on the realisation of investments 976 -
Other investment income 3,017 2,923
Interest on defined benefit pension plan obligation (1,060) (884)
Expected return on defined benefit pension plan assets 1,050 854
Exchange and translation losses 77 (404)
Derivative {charge)/income {586) 1,903
3,828 4,856

Income from listed investments included in other Investment income was £2,966,000 (2009:
£2,889,000).

Unrealised (losses)/galns on investments

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Unrealised (losses)/gains on investments 31) 4,214
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10.

11.

12.

Investment expenses and charges

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Investment management expenses, including interest 461 562
Losses on the reallsation of investments - 2,747
461 3,309

Operating surplus

Of the group operating result, £3,000 surplus (2009: surplus of £199,000) Is attributable to the share

of operating results in joint ventures.

Surplus on ordinary actlvities before tax

2010 2008
£'000 £'000
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax Is stated after charging/(crediting):
Overdraft and loan Interest 250 352
Depreciation on land and buildings 149 i52
Depreclation on tangible fixed assets 254 262
(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets (2) 3
Amottisation of goodwill 1,335 851
Exchange and translation losses 513 1,128
Derivatlve charge/{income) 586 (1,903)
Operating lease costs - land and buildings 172 1i4
- other items 215 191
Property revaluation through income & expenditure account 215 -
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit of these financial statements 157 152
Amounts receivable by the auditors and their associates in respect of!
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to
legislation 88 89
Other services pursuant to such legislation 158 154
Other services relating to tax - 9
Audit of pension scheme 4 5
All other services (principally regulatory) - 33

Surplus attributable to members of the parent company

The deficit in the accounts of the parent company was £260,000 {(2009; £1,917,000).
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13. Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

2010 2009
E'Q000 £'000
The charge for taxation is computed as follows:
UK corporation tax on the taxable surplus for the year
at 28% (2009 28%) 87 50
Adjustment in respect of previous periods - (89)
87 (39)
Double taxation relief (13) (50)
74 (89)
Overseas tax 417 420
Adjustment In respect of previous periods 47 10
464 430
Share of joint ventures’ current taxation {4) 30
(4) 30
Total current taxation 534 371
Deferred tax {(note 26)
Reversal of timing differences (113) (34)
Tax rellef claimed in respect of contributions paid to
the group defined benefit pension scheme - 298
Total deferred taxation {113) 264
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 421 635
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13,

14,

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities {continued)

2010 2009

£°000 £'000
Factors affecting the tax charge for the period:
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax 2,976 5,084
Current tax at 28% (2009: 28%) 833 1,424
Effects of:
Non taxable income {(1,718) 8
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,973 597
Lower raies of overseas tax (644) {1,206)
Capital allowances In excess of depreciatlon 310 {20)
Other short-term timing differences {187} 54
Pouble taxation rellef (13) (50)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods 47 (79)
Forelgn tax credits - (9
Losses utllised (51) (44)
Tax relief claimed In respect of contributions paid to the
group defined benefit pension scheme - {298)
Small companies relief (6) (6)
Total current tax charge (see above) 534 371

There Is no UK deferred tax. Overseas deferred tax is calculated at the relevant tax rates applicable

in each jurisdiction.

Goodwill
Group
2010
£'000
Cost
At 1% January 2010 9,193
Adjustment due to exchange rates (10)
Adjustment due fo contingent considaration (173)
At 31% December 2010 9,010
Amortisation
At 1* January 2010 2,434
Adjustment due to exchange rates 7
Charged in year 1,335
At 31 December 2010 3,776
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 5,234
At 31%t December 2009 6,759
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14,

Goodwill {continued)

Goodwill Is being amortised over its useful economic life, which the directors estimate individually
for each acquisltion and s shown below.

Goodwill in respect of the acquisition of Salvus Bain (Management) Limited is being amortised
over five years, Following the completion of the group restructure in 2009 the directors have
reassessed the useful economic life of this goodwill and reduced the amortisation period from
twenty to five years.

Goodwill in respect of the acquisition of shares in Van Olst de Graaff & Co BV is belng amortised
over five years.

On 1% January 2009 Salvus Baln (Management) USA LLC acquired the trade and net assets of
Marine Underwriters Inc, a business trading in USA. The carrying value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the entity at the date of acquisition was also the fair value to the group.

The falr value of the Identiffable assets and liabllities of the entity at the date of acquisition were:

Carrying value and fair
value to the group

£'000
Assets
Tangible assets 47
Net assets acquired 47
Goodwill arising on acquisition 809
Total consideration 856

The conslderation was satisfied solely by ¢cash.

The acquisition has been accounted for by using the acquisition method of accounting.

Goodwill is being amortised over flve years,

On 1% January 2009 Van Olst de Graaff & Co BV acquired the trade of Assurantiekantoor P M
Arkesteijn an entity trading in the Netherlands. No identifiable assets or liabllities were acquired
at the date of acquisition. The goodwill arising on the acquisition Is the purchase price of
£1,271,000,

The goodwill adjustment relating to contingent conslderation is in relation to the acquisition of
Assurantiekantoor P M Arkesteijn.

The consideration was satisfied solely by cash,
The acquisition has been accounted for by using the acquisition method of accounting.

Goodwill is belng amottised over five years.
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15. Land and buildings Freechold land and
buildings
£000
Group
Valuation
At 1% January 2010 8,968
Adjustment due to exchange rates 327
Revaluation through reserves (432)
Revaluation through income and expenditure account (233)
At 31% December 2010 8,630

Deapreciation

At 1% January 2010 177
Adjustment due to exchange rates 10
Charge for the year 149
Revaluation through reserves (271)
Revaluation through income and expenditure account (18)
At 318! December 2010 47

Net book value

At 31% December 2010 8,583

At 31% December 2009 8,791

Company

Valuation

At 1% January 2010 8,437

Adjustment due to exchange rates 307

Revaluation through reserves (432)
Revaluation through income and expenditure account (150)
At 31% December 2010 8,162

Depreciation

At 1% lanuary 2010 166

Adjustment due to exchange rates 10

Charge for the year 139

Revaluation through reserves (271)

Revaluation through income and expenditure account

At 31%% December 2010 44

Net book value

At 31%% December 2010 8,118

At 31% December 2009 8,271
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15. Land and bulldings (continued)

The group’s freehold property in the UK was re-valued to £6,250,000 at 24" September 2010 by
external valuers Bradley Hall Chartered Surveyors Limited. The property was valued on the basis of
open market value for existing use. The valuation is in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation
Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The group’s overseas freehold properties were re-valued during August 2010. Freehold property
amounting to £1,512,561 was valued by suitably qualified external valuers, Sutherland Farrelly,
Licenced Property Valuers. Freehold property armounting to £399,798 was valued by suitably
gualified external valuers, Duke & Cooke Limited, Valuers & Property Speclalists. Freehold property
amounting to £467,806 was valued by sultably qualified external valuers CB Richard Ellis, Inc.,

Valuation and Advisory Services. The properties were valued on the basis of open market value for
existing use,

The total cost of all land and bulldings at 31* December 2010 was £8,578,000 (2009; £8,578,000).

16. Investments in group undertakings and particlpating interests

The principal subsidiaries at the end of the year included in the consolidation are:

Country of  Propottion Nature of
incorporation of equity businass

or registration shares held
sunderland Marine (Africa) Limited South Africa 100% Marine insurance
SM Insurance (Bermuda) Limited Bermuda 100%  Marine reinsurance
Salvus Bain Management (USA) LLC U.S.A. 100% Brokerage
van Oist de Graaff & Co BV Netherlands 73% Brokerage

The joint ventures included in the consolidation are:

Country of Proportion Nature of
incorporation of equity business
or registration shares held
Joint ventures

Knighthood Corporate Assurance Services England 499%, Insurance Broker
Plc

Harlock Murray Underwriting Limited Canada 50% Broking &

management

Services

Knighthood has been accounted for as a joint venture by virtue of the joint control exercised over the
financial and operating policies of the company.
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16.

Investments in group undertakings and participating interests (continued) Shares In
group
undertakings
£'000
Group
At 1% January 2010 776
Adjustment due to exchange movements 26
Share of profits of joint ventures 3
Share of joint venture current taxation 4
Dividend pald (95)
At 31% December 2010 714
Company
At 1% January 2010 32,573
Adjustment due to exchange movements 230
Increase in loans owed by subsidiary undertakings 130
Repayment of subsidlartes capital (3,275)
Revaluation of subsidiaries through reserves 2,831
Revaluation of subsidiaries through income and
expenditure account (798)
Impairment on striking off subsidlaries (4,224)
At 315 December 2010 27,467

Sunderiand Paclfic Management Pty Limited has been struck off following the group restructure in
2009.

Sunderland Pacific Management (NZ) Limited paid a final dividend and then repaid its share capital to
Salvus Bain {(Management) Limited before being struck off.

Salvus Baln (Management) Limited paid a final dividend and then repaid its share capltal to the
company before it was struck off. The value of Salvus Bain (Management) Limited in the company
balance sheet was then eliminated.

Saivus Baln (Africa) Limited paid a final dividend to Sunderland Marine (Africa) Limited hefore
becoming dormant.

The repayment of subsidiaries capital to the company of £3,275,000 represents the repayment of
Salvus Bain {Management) Limited's share capital and the repayment by SM Insurance (Bermuda)
Limited of its contributed capltat of £2,800,000,

SM Insurance {Guernsey) Limited was struck off during the year,

sunderland Marine (Africa) Limited and SM Insurance (Bermuda) Limited have been valued at net
asset value in the company balance sheet at 31 December 2010.

Salvus Baln Management (USA) LLC and the company’s share of Van Olst de Graaff & Co BV have
been re-valued in the company balance sheet by sultably qualified external valuers at 31% December
2010.

The company’s share in its joint ventures, Knighthood Corporate Assurance Services Pic and Harlock
Murray Underwriting Limited, have been re-valued in the company balance sheet by syitably qualified
valuers at 31% December 2010.
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16.

17.

Investments in group undertakings and participating interests {continued)

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Share of joint ventures’ assets 1,840 1,770
Share of joint ventures’ abllitles (1,126) {994)
714 776
At the year end, balances due to/(from) the group to its joint ventures were as foliows:-
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Knighthood Corporate Assurance Services Plc
- trading balances (2) 204
Harlock Murray Underwriting Limited
- trading balances 397 306

The total cost of investments in group undertakings at 31* December 2010 is £8,342,000 (2009:

£15,426,000).

Financial assets

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £°000 £°000 £'000
Equity securities at fair value through income
Market value 4,097 3,842 - -
Cost 4,386 4,409 - -
Debt securities at fair value through income
Market value 64,130 63,687 21,529 14,103
Cost 63,775 62,845 21,594 14,139
Derivatives at fair value through
income 348 402 88 39

The falr value of listed equities and debt securities is determined by reference to their quoted bid
price at the reporting date,

The fair value of the derivative financial instrurments is based on their listed market price,
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18,

19,

20,

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions
Provision for Provision for Total
unearned unearned Claims
premiums commission outstanding
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 1% January 2010 7,559 (1,677} 11,132 17,014
Adjustment due to exchange
movements 600 {148) 875 1,327
Movement during the year 6,105 (2,272} 1,691 5,524
At 31% December 2010 14,264 (4,097) 13,698 23,865
Company
At 1% January 2010 26,576 {6,535) 49,067 69,108
Adjustment due to exchange
movements 1,698 {139) 2,294 3,853
Movement during the year 1,114 (2,215) (5,040} {6,141}
At 31% December 2010 29,388 (8,889) 46,321 68,820
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£°000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Amounts owed by policyhclders 17,903 17,510 17,750 17,294
Amounts owed by 192 137 192 137
intermediaries
18,095 17,647 17,942 17,431
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Debtors arising out of Inward
reinsurance operations 265 804 265 804
Debtors arising out of outward
reinsurance operations 5,649 1,530 5,649 1,487
5,914 2,334 5,914 2,301
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21,

22,

Other debtors
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 E'000 £'000
Corporation tax - 102 - 102
Other taxation 198 101 89 81
Other debtors 1,304 1,860 584 610
Deferred taxation (note 26) 520 306 457 255
2,022 2,369 1,130 1,048
Tangible fixed assets
Fixtures Motor
& fittings vehicles Computers Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Cost
At 1 January 2010 823 332 740 1,895
Adjustment due to exchange movements 8 19 19 46
Additlons 47 219 789 1,055
Disposals - {173) (42) (215)
At 31% December 2010 878 397 1,506 2,781
Depreclation
At 1% January 2010 503 150 631 1,284
Adjustment due to exchange movements 7 9 16 32
Charge for the year 142 59 93 254
On disposals - {115) (40) {155)
At 31% December 2010 612 103 700 1,415
Net book value
At 315 December 2010 266 294 806 1,366
At 31% December 2009 320 182 109 611
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22. Tanglble fixed assets (continued)

23,

Fixtures Motor
& fittings vehicles Computers Total
£°0600 £'000 £7000 £°000
Company
Cost
At 1%t January 2010 357 85 103 545
Adjustments due to exchange movements (2} 22 (7) i3
Additions 40 100 766 906
Disposals - (42) - {42)
At 31% December 2010 395 165 862 1,422
Depreclation
At 1%t January 2010 70 2 31 103
Adjustments due to exchange movements {3) 9 {9} {3)
Charge for the year 94 29 71 194
Disposals - (10) - (10)
At 31% December 2010 161 30 93 284
Net book value
At 31% December 2010 234 135 769 1,138
At 31 December 2009 287 83 72 442
Capltal and reserves
Income & expenditure account
Revaluation Reserve | Translation I8&E
reserve fund reserve reserve Tatal
£:000 £'000 £000 £000 £7000
Group
At 1% Japuary 2010 335 26,007 2 17,320 17,322
Surplus for year - - - 2,448 2,448
Foreign exchange rate
movements 26 - 32 - 32
Actuarlal surplus
recognised
in pension scheme - - - 21 21
Revaluation of property (161) - - - -
At 31% December 2010 200 26,007 34 19,789 19,823
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23,

24.

Capltal and reserves (continued)

Income & expenditure account

Revaluation Translation I%E
reserve Reserve fund reserve reserve Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Company
At 1%t January 2010 17,402 26,007 (535) 647 112
Deficlt for year - - - (260) {260)
Revaluation of subsidiaries 2,831 - - - -
Revaluation of property {161} - - - -
Foreign exchange rate
movements 129 - (83) - {83)
Actuarial surplus
recognised in pension
scheme - - - 21 21
At 31% December 2010 20,201 26,007 (618) 408 (210)
Reconcillation of movements on capital and reserves
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1% January 43,664 40,977 43,521 41,939
Surplus/(deficit) for year 2,448 4,346 {260) (1,917
Revaluation of property (161} - {161) -
Revaluation of subsidiaries - - 2,831 4,521
Foreign exchange rate movements 58 (188) 46 (284)
Actuarial surplus/(deficlt) recognised in
pension scheme 21 (1,471) 21 (1,138)
At 31%* December 46,030 43,664 45,998 43,521
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25, Technical provisions - gross amounts

26.

Provision for

unearned Claims
premiums outstanding Total
£000 £'000 E£°000

Group
At 1% January 2010 31,879 54,438 86,317
Adjustment due to exchange movements 2,057 2,443 4,500
Movement during the year (1,826) (5,936) {(7,762)
At 31% December 2010 32,110 50,945 83,055
Company
At 1% January 2010 31,189 54,259 85,448
Adjustment due to exchange movements 1,950 2,389 4,339
Movement duting the year {1,800) (5,931} (7,731)
At 31% December 2010 31,339 50,717 82,056

Provision for deferred tax assets

The provislon for deferred tax assets has been made at the rate of tax relevant in each

overseas jurisdiction as follows:

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

£000 E£'000 £°000 £'000
At 1% January 306 215 255 (17)
Adjustment due to exchange movements 101 57 92 45
Adjusted provision at 1% January 407 272 347 28
Transfer on group restructure - - - 29
Movement during year 113 34 110 198
At 31* December 520 306 457 255

Excess of taxation allowances over

depreciation on fixed assets (5) (351) (27} {316)
Other iming differences 525 657 484 571
520 306 457 255
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27. Derivative liabilities

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Derlvatives at fair value through income 227 343 182 306

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments s based on thelr listed market price.

28. Creditors arlsing out of reinsurance operations

Group Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

£000 £'000 £°'000 £'000

Amounts owing to subsidiary undertakings - - 14,598 14,626
Other creditors arising out of reinsurance

operations 8,350 2,786 8,350 2,786

8,350 2,786 22,948 17,412

29, Creditors ~ borrowings

Creditors include finance capital which is due for repayment as foliows:

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank overdraft 6,148 5,216 6,148 5,216
Bank loans 607 1,149 - -
6,755 6,365 6,148 5,218
Amounts repayable:
In one year or less or on demand 6,603 5,676 6,148 5,216
In more than one year but not more
than five years 152 689 - -
6,755 6,365 6,148 5,216

Group borrowings are secured by guarantee provided by the company and a subsidiary undertaking.
Interest is charged at 2.1% above base rate on the overdraft and 2.25% above Libor on the loans,
Interest charged during the year on the loans was £36,000 (2009: £151,000) and on the overdraft
£214,000 (2009: £201,000).
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30.

31.

Other creditors including taxation and social security

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Corporation tax 76 - 76 -
Other taxes and social securlty 950 537 919 573
Other creditors 1,805 2,086 385 4,846
2,831 2,623 1,380 5,419
Financlal assets and liabllities
Fair
Group value Total
through Loans and Amortised carrying Total fair
At 31% pecember 2010 income receivables cost value value
£000 £°000 £000 £'000 £'000
Financlal assets
Equity securities at falr value through
income 4,097 - - 4,097 4,097
Debt securities at fair value through
income 64,130 - - 64,130 64,130
Derivatives 348 - - 348 348
Deposits with credit institutions - 9,521 - 9,521 9,521
Debtors arising out of direct insurance
operations - 18,095 - 18,095 18,095
Debtors arising out of reinsurance
operations - 5,914 - 5,914 5,914
Other debtors - 2,022 - 2,022 2,022
Cash and cash equivalents - 2,637 - 2,637 2,637
At 31% December 2010 68,575 38,189 - 106,764 106,764
Financial liabilities
Derivatives (227) - - (227) (227)
Creditors arising cut of direct insurance
operations - - (1,984) {1,984) (1,984)
Creditors arising out of reinsurance
operations - - (8,350) (8,350) (8,350)
Borrowings - - (6,755}  (6,755) (6,755)
Other creditors, Including taxation and
soclal security - - (2,831) (2,831) {2,831)
At 31% December 2010 {(227) - (19,920) (20,147) (20,147)
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31. Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Fair
value Total Total
through  Loans and Amortised carrying fair

At 31% becember 2009 income receivables cost value value

£'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £'000
Financial assets
Equity securities at fair value through
income 3,842 - - 3,842 3,842
Debt securities at falr value through
income 63,687 - - 63,687 63,687
Derivatives 402 - - 402 402
Deposits with credit institutions - 11,862 - 11,862 11,862
Debtors arising out of direct insurance
operations - 17,647 - 17,647 17,647
Debtors arising out of relnsurance
operations - 2,334 - 2,334 2,334
Other debtors - 2,369 - 2,369 2,369
Cash and cash equivalents - 5,912 - 5,912 5,912
At 31% December 2009 67,931 40,124 - 108,055 108,055
Financial liabilities
Derivatives (343) - - (343) (343)
Creditors arising out of direct
Insurance operatlons - - (1,915) (1,915) (1,915)
Creditors arising out of reinsurance
operations - - {2,786) (2,786) (2,786)
Borrowings - - {6,365) {6,365) (6,365)
Other creditors, Including taxation and
soclal security - - (2,623) (2,623) (2,623)
At 315 December 2009 (343} - (13,689) (14,032) (14,032)
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended 31% December 2010

32.

33.

Recoencillation of surplus on ordinary activities before taxation to net cash outflow from

operating activities

2010 2009
£'000 £°000
Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 2,976 5,084
Share of profit of joint ventures (3) (199)
Amortisation of goodwill 1,335 854
Depreclation 403 414
(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets {(2) 3
Derivative charge/{income) 586  (1,903)
{Gain}/loss on sale of fiquid investments (976) 2,747
Adjustment to carrying value of liquid investments 31 (4,214)
Forelgn exchange rate fluctuation {2,907) (5786)
Tax suffered on investment income {464) (430)
Bank interest charge 250 352
Property revaluation through income and expenditure account 215 -
Pension contributions in excess of expense In income and expenditure
account (348) (1,271)
Increase in reinsurers’ share of technical provisions (6,851) (4,429}
(Increase)/decrease in debtors {3,569) 3,174
Decrease in prepayments and accrued income 493 517
Decrease in technical provisions (3,262) (1,460)
Increasef(decrease} in creditors 5,765 (1,123}
(Decrease)/fincrease in accruals and deferred income (817) 591
Net cash outflow from operating activities (7,145) (1,869)
Movement in cash, portfolio investments and financing
Deposits 8
cash at bank Fixed
net of Ordinary income Land and
overdraft shares securities buildings Loans Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £000
At 1** January 2010 12,558 3,842 63,687 8,791 (1,149) 87,729
Cash flow (7,639) {29} (1,658) - 555 {8,771)
Changes to market
value and currencles 1,091 284 2,101 (208} (13) 3,255
At 31% December
2010 6,010 4,097 64,130 8,583 (607) 82,213
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Sundertand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended 31% December 2010

34.

35.

Commitments under operating leases

At 31° December the group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as
set out below,

2010 2009
Land & Other Land & Other
buildings items  buildings items
£7000 £000 £°000 £000
Group

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 36 37 56 9
Within two to five years 123 133 69 160
Over five years 35 - - -
194 170 125 169

Pension commitments
Group
Defined benefit pension scheme

Salvus Bain (Management) Limited operated a defined benefit pension scheme in the United
Kingdom, the Salvus Baln (Management) Limited Pension Scheme until 30% June 2009. The
scheme was transferred to Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited on this date.
The Information disclosed below Is in respect of the only plan for which Sunderland Marine
Mutual Company Limited |s the sponsoring employer.

2010 2009

£000 £000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations (21,103} (18,257)
Falr value of plan assets 20,209 16,994
Deflcit (894) (1,263)
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
Year Ended 31% December 2010

Pension commitments (continued)

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

2010 2009

£000 £°000
At 1% January 18,257 13,202
Current service cost 673 458
Interest cost 1,060 884
Actuarial losses 1,090 3,736
Benefits paid {139) (188)
Contributions by members 164 165
At 31% December 21,103 18,257
Movements In fair value of plan assets

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
At 1% January 16,994 12,139
Expected return on plan assets 1,050 854
Actuarial galns 1,111 2,265
Contributions by employer 1,025 1,759
Contributions by members 164 165
Benefits paild (139) (188}
At 31 December 20,209 16,994
Expense recognised in the Income and expenditure
account

2010 2009

£'000 £'000
Current service cost 671 458
Interest on defined benefit pension plan obillgation 1,060 884
Expected return on defined benefit pension plan assets (1,050) (854)
Total 681 488
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
Year Ended 31* December 2010

Pension commitments (continued)

The expense is recognised In the foliowing line items in the income and expenditure account:

2010 2009

£000 E£'000

Net operating expenses 671 458
Investment losses 10 30
681 488

The total amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses in respect of
actuarial gains is £21,000 (2009; losses £1,471,000).

The fair value of the plan assets and the return on those assets were as follows:

2010 2009

Fair value Fair value

£'000 £°000

Equities 8,716 11,000
Bonds 9,783 4,625
Property 35 14
Hedge fund of funds 1,126 870
Cash 549 485
20,209 16,994

Actual return on plan assets 2,206 2,520

The expected rates of return on plan assets are determined by considering the expected return on each

individual asset class.

rates In accordance with the anticipated balance In the plan’s investment portfolio.

The overail expected rate of return is calculated by weighting the individual
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Year Ended 31%* December 2010

Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) at the year end were as follows:

2010 2009

% %

Discount rate 5.5 5.7
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.0 6.0
Expected return on plan assets at beginning of the period 6.0 6.5
Future salary increases 3.75 3.6
Infiation 3.50 3.6
Mortality PA92mc PA92mc

The assumptions relating to longevity underiylng the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are
based on standard actuarial mortality tables and Include an aliowance for future improvements in
longevity. The assumptions are equivalent to expecting a current pensioner aged 63 years old to live

for 24 years {maie} and 27 years (female}.

History of plan

The history of the plan for the current and prlor periods is as follows. The company has chosen not to
restate the corresponding amounts for the first two of the previous four accounting periods for the

effect of using the current bid-price rather than the mid-market price.

Balance sheet 2010 2009 2008 2007 20086
£°000 £'000 £000 £°000 £'000

Present value of scheme liabliitles (21,103} (18,257) (13,202) {15,077) {13,814)

Falr value of scheme assets 20,209 16,994 12,139 12,854 11,468

Deficit (894) (1,263) {1,063) {2,223) {2,346)
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

% % % % %

Experience adjustments on

scheme liabilities as a

percentage of scheme liabilities (5.2) (20.7) 25.1 {1.8) {1G.0)

Experience adjustments on

scheme assets as a percentage

of scheme assets 5.5 134 {31.6) 4.4 5.6

The company expects to contribute approximately £953,000 to Its defined benefit plan in the next

financial year.
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35.

36.

Pension commitments (continued)

‘The company contributed £159,000 (2009: £180,000) to the pension scheme for administration fees,
audit fees and members’ life assurance premiums.

Defined contribution pension schemes

The group also operates a number of deflned contribution pension schemes. The total pension cost
charge for the year represents contributions payable to the schemes and amounted to £170,000 (2009:
£206,000). There were no outstanding or prepald contributions at either the beginning or the end of the
financial year. Contributions of £61,000 (2009: £50,000) were also made to a government
superannuation scheme.

Company
On 30™ June 2009 the defined benefit pension stheme was transferred from Salvus Bain (Management)
Limited to Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited, The scheme liability at this date was
£535,000,

On 30 June 2009 the defined contribution pension scheme operated by Salvus Baln (Management)
Limited was also transferred to Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited.

Guarantees

SM Insurance (Bermuda) Limited has a guarantee in favour of Barclays Bank Plc to enable Sunderland
Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited to enter Into commercial borrowing with Barclays Bank Pic for
a sum of up to £25,000,000. At 31st December 2010 the amount owing on the facility was £6,148,000,
representing the charge over the assels that Barclays Bank Pic has on SM Insurance {Bermuda) Limited.

The company had a guarantee in favour of Barclays Bank Plc to enable its subsidiary undertakings to
enter Into commercial loans with the bank. At 31% December the amount owing was £607,000.

The company has a guarantee in favour of its subsidiary company Sunderland Marine (Africa) Limited.
The guarantee provides comfort to the policyholders of Sunderiand Marine (Africa) Limited as the
company will stand as a guarantor for the first South African R3,000,000 of any clatm.
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Audit report

To the shareholders of Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company
Limited — New Zealand Branch

We have audited the financial statements on pages 4 to 18. The financial statements provide
information about the past financial performance of Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance
Company Limited’s New Zealand Branch (“the Branch™) and its financial position as at 31
December 2010. This information is stated in accordance with the accounting policies set out on
pages 7 to 10.

Directors® responsibilities

The Directors of Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited (“the Company™) arc
responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2010 and the results of its operations for the
vear ended on that date.

Auditors’ responsibilities

It is our responsibility to express an independent opinion on the firancial statements presented
by the Directors and report our opinion to you,

Basis of opinion

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes assessing:

+ the significant estimates and judgements made by the Direciors of the Company in the
preparation of the financial statements; and

* whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Branch’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.

We conducted our audit in accordance with New Zealand Auditing Standards. We planned and
performed cur audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements.

(4

1
KPMG, an Australian partnership and a mamber firm of the KPMG network
of independent member firms affiiated with KPMG International, a Swiss coaperative.
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Partners and employees of our firm may deal with the Branch on normal terms within the
ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the Branch. These matters have not
impaired our independence as auditors of the Branch. The firm has no other relationship with, or
interest in, the Branch.

Unqualified opinion

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion;

s proper accounting records have been kept by the Branch as far as appears from our
examination of those records;

e the financial statements on pages 4 to 18.
—- comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice;

- give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2010
and the results of its operations for the year ended on that date.

Our audit was completed on 17 June 2011 and our unqualified opinion is expressed as at that
date.

A
KPMG

Melboumne

{ 7 June 2011



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Annual Report

For the year ended 31 December 2010

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the financial statements of its New Zealand
Branch for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the auditor’s report thereon.

In the Directors’ opinion, the financial statements and notes set out on pages 4-18:

a} comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice and give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2010 and the results
of operations of the year ended on that date.

b) have been prepared using the appropriate accounting policies, which have been
consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates,

The Directors believe that proper accounting reports have been kept which enable, with
reasonable accuracy, the determination of the financial position of the Branch and facilitate
compliance of the financial statements with the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the
Companies Act 1993, There are reasonable grounds to believe that, as at the time this statement
is made, the Branch will be able to pay all debtors or claims as and when they are due.

The shareholders of the Company have exercised their right under Section 211(3) of the
Companies Act 1993 and unanimously agreed that this Annual Report need not comply with
any of paragraphs (a) and (e) to (j} of Section 211(1) of the Act.

Signed in Durham on 17 June, 2011 in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

For and on behalf of the Board of Management:

_AAALLA MQ_L_/\

G.C. PARKINSON A.J. ALDEN

Director Director

17 June, 2011 17 June, 2011
3
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Statement of Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Note 2010 2008
$NZ $NZ

Revenue
Premium 3(a) 4,370,721 4,869,911
Investment income 3(b) 57,894 92,604
Total operating revenue 4,428,615 4,962 515
Expenses
Claims 3a) {1,719,651) (3,610,185)
Underwriting expenses 3(a) (69,454) (714,098)
Administration expenses (1,511,400 (497,311)
Operating surplus before taxation 1,128,110 140,951
Income Tax 10 (330,635) (100,692)
Profit from operating ativites after tax 797,475 40,259

attributable to members of SMMI Co Ltd.

The Statement of Financial Performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and
forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 18.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Statement of Movements in Head Office Account

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
HEAD OFFICE ACCOUNT $NZ NZ
Head Office Account at the Beginning of the Year 930,254 1,262,387
Net surplus for the year 797,475 40,259
Transfer to parent on settlement of Head (66,996) (372,392)
Office Account
Head Office Account at the end of year 1,660,733 930,254

e

The Statcment of Movements in Head Office Account is 1o be read in conjunction with the
notes to and forming part of the financial statements sct out on pages 7 to 18.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2010

Note 2010 2009
$NZ $NZ

Assets _ i
Land and Buildings 5 799,773 788,500
Fixed Assets 108,780 95,613
Total non-current assets 908,563 882,113
Current assets
Cash on hand 2,655 98,510
Short term bank deposits 531,205 438,798
Financial Assets 7 521,415 525,440
Debiors 6,191,269 5,796,659
Reinsurance Receivable 8 642,105 498,237
Total current assets 7,888,649 7,357,544
Total assets 8,797,212 8,239,657
Current liabilities
Payables 279,690 ) 850,848
Unearned premium 4 037,576 3,760,858
Cther Income Deductions - -
Provision for outstanding claims 9 2,819,213 2,697,697
Total liabilities 7,136,479 7,306,403
Head Office Current Account 1,660,733 930,254
Total liabilities and Head Office Account 8,797,212 8,239,657

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial
statements set out on pages 7 to 18,

For and on behalf of the Board:

et ARG (g

G.C. PARKINSON AJ. ALDEN

Directior Director

17 June, 2011 17 June, 2011
6
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31° December 2010

1

Summary of significant accounting policies

Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited - New Zealand branch (“the
Branch™) is registered to carry on inward insurance business in New Zealand for a foreign
company. The Branch’s principal activity is general insurance.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 17 June 2011
a) Reporting entity

Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited is a company registered under
the Companics Act 1993, These are the financial statements of the New Zealand Branch
(“the Branch™) of the Company. The financial statements of the Branch have been
prepared in accordance with NZ IFRS.

The financial statements comprise the following: statement of accounting policics,
Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Movements in Head Office Account,
Statement of Financial Position as well as the notes to the statements contained on pages
7 to 10 of this annual report. The financial report has been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and on the basis of historical
cost,

Fitch Ratings have assigned an A- rating to Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance
Company Limited New Zealand Branch.

b) Mecasurement base

The accounts of the Branch have been drawn up in accordance with applicable New
Zealand accounting standards and are cxpressed in New Zealand dollars.

The Branch follows the accounting principles recognised as appropriate for the
measurement and reporting of financial performance and financial position on a market
value basis in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No.35 “Financial Reporting
of Insurance Activities”.

¢) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP). They comply with the New Zealand
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other
applicable Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate to profit generating entities that
qualify for and apply differential reporting concessions. The Branch is a profit oriented
entity. The Branch is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act
1993 and its financial statements comply with that Act.

7
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31* December 2010

1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Branch qualifies for differential reporting exemptions as it has no public
accouniability, and all its owners are involved in the governing of the Branch. All other
available exemptions allowed under the Framework for Differential Reporting have been
adopted.

d) Basis of Operation
The financial report is presenied in New Zealand Dollars,

The financial report is prepared in accordance with the fair value basis accounting unless
otherwise stated below.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Branch to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

¢) Premium revenue

Premiums have been brought to account as income from the date of attachment. The
earned portion of premiums received and receivable is recognised as revenue, Uncarned
premiums are calculated by apportioning the premium income written in the year over the
periods of risk from the dates of attachment based on the pattern of risk.

f) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at their estimated realisable value after providing against
debts where collection is doubtful. Bad debts are written off in the period in which they
are identified.

g) Financial assets backing insurance contract liabilities

The Branch has determined that all financial assets are deemed to back insurance contract
liabilities and are measured at fair value through the Statement of Financial Performance
at each balance date as they meet the criteria under NZ 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. Unrealised profits and losses on subsequent measurement
to fair value are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

h) Impairment of assets

All assets other than those which are set outside the scope of NZ IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For the purposes assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
1dentifiable cash flows.

8
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31* December 2010

1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
i) Leases

Operating lease payments, where the lesser effectively retains substantially all the risks
and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are included in the determination of
operating surplus in equal instalments over the lease term.

i) Income Tax

The income tax cxpense charged to the Statement of Financial Performance includes both
the current year’s provision and the income tax effects of timing differences calculated
using the liability method. Tax effect accounting is applied on a comprehensive basis 1o
all iming differences. A debit balance in the deferred tax account, arising from timing
differences or income tax benefits from income tax losses, 1s only recognised if there is
virtually certainty of realisation.

k) Goods and services tax

Revenues and expenses are stated net of goods and services tax (GST). Trade receivables
and trade payables are stated inclusive of GS'1' to the extent that GST is recoverable or
payable.

I} Claims

Claims expense and liability for outstanding claims are recognised in respect of direct
business. The liability covers claims reported and outstanding, incurred but not reported
claims (“IBNR”) and the anticipated direct and indircct costs of settling those claims.
Claims outstanding are assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating the
ultimate cost of settling claims which includes IBNR’s and settlement costs using
statistics based on past experience and trends. The outstanding claims reserve is
estimated using internal management models and no actuarial valuation is explicitly
performed on the Branch. A liability for outstanding claims has been recognised in
respect of direct business as there are policies in default as at 31" December 2010.

m) Acquisition costs

A portion of acquisition costs rclating to unearned premium revenue is recognised as an
asset in recognition that it represents a future benefit. Deferred acquisition costs are
amortised over the financial years expected to benefit from the expenditure and are stated
at the lower of cost and recoverable value. As at 31% December 2010, the Company had
not deferred any costs.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31" December 2010

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
n) Reinsurance

Premiums ceded to reinsurers are recognised as an expensc in accordance with the pattern
of reinsurance service received.

2 Summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions

Provision is made at the end of the year for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not
settled at balance date. These reserves include estimates for claims that have been
reported, claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR), and claims that have
been incurred but not enough reported {IBNER), and include estimates of expenses
associated with processing and settling these claims,

The process of establishing reserves is subject to considerable variability as it requires the
use of informed estimates and judgements. These estimates and judgements are based on
numerous factors, and may be revised as additional experience and other data become
available or as regulations change.

QOutstanding claims provision is estimated by class of business. Historical experience and
other statistical information are used to estimate the ultimate claim costs. To determine
the outstanding claims provision for a particular line of business, more than one method
may be used to estimate ultimate losses and loss expenses and thus selecting a single
point estimate. These methods may include, but are not necessarily limited to;
extrapolations of historical reported and paid loss data, application of industry loss
developments patterns to the reported or paid losses, expected loss ratios developed by
management, or historical industry loss ratios, Underlying judgements and assumptions
that may be incorporated into these actuarial results include, but are not necessarily
timited to, adjustments to historical data used in models to exclude aberrations in claims
data such as catastrophes that are typically analysed separately, adjustments to actuarial
models and related data for known business changes, such as changes in claims covered
under insurance contracts, and the effect of recent or pending litigation on future claims
seltlements.

The reserves as at 31 December 2010 were valued by Daniel Smith FIAA who was
satisfied as to the nature, sufficicncy and accuracy of the data provided.

10
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
$NZ $NZ
3 Operating Results
(a) Underwriting result
Gross premium income 6,878,620 6,624,978
Decrease in unearned premium (298,118} {20,049)
Reinsurance ceded (2,208,781) {1,735,018)
Net premium 4 370,721 4,869,911
Claims expense
Claims paid 2,468,925 4,753 471
Claims settlement expenses 20,640 -
Increase in outstanding claims provision 181,567 1,735,003
Reinsurance recoveries (951,481) ~ (2,878,318)
Total claims expense 1,719,651 3,610,155
Underwriting expenses
Net commissions 317,905 280,928
Management expenses - 466,461
Other income deductions {248 451) {33,291)
Total underwriting expenses 69,454 714,098
Underwriting resuit 2581616 545,658
{b) Investment income
Interest 57,804 92 604
4 Auditor's Remuneration
Amounts received, or due and receivable, by the auditors
KPMG 8,000 8378

11

39



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

5 Land and Buildings Land and Buildings (at valuation)
INZ

Balance at 31 December 2010

Cost/Revaluation 800,000
Accumulated depreciation {13,5600)
Carrying value 786,500
Current year rise 13,273
Net Carrying Value 799773
Balance at 31 December 2009

Cost/Revaluation 800,000
Accumulated depreciation (8,000)
Carrying value 791,000
Current year depreciation (4,500)
Net Carrying Value 786 500

Land and Buildings (at valuation) were independently vaiued on 2 September 2010 by Duke & Cooke
Limited, a firm registered with the Institule of Valuers of New Zeatand, at $813,273.

& (a) Net Claims Expense 2010 2009
$NZ $NZ

Current
Gross claims incurred 2,650,492 6,488,474
Reinsurance and other recoveries (951,481) (2,878,319)
Net claims incurred 1,699,011 3,610,155
Claims settlement expenses 20,640 -
Net ctaims expense 1,719,851 3,610,155

{b) Net claims expense
Current year ¢laims relate to risks borne in the current financial year. Prior period claims relate to a
reassessment of the risks borne in all previous periods.

Current Prior 2010 2000
year periods Total Total
$ $ 5 $
Gross claims incurred and related
expenses - undiscounted 3,508,333 {(837,201) 2,671,132 6,488,475
Reinsurance and other recoveries -
Undiscounted (901,842) (49 638) {951,481) (2,878,319)
Net claims incurred - undiscounted 2,606,491 (886,840) 1,719,651 3,610,156

Discount and discount movement-
gross ciaims incurred - - - -
Net discount movement - - - -

2,606,491 {886,840y 1,719,651 3,610,156

12
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
7 Financial Assets $NZ $NZ
(a) Financial assets - fair vaiue through profit or foss
Debt securities - unsecured 521,415 525,440
Total financial assets - fair value through profit or loss 521,415 525,440
Current financial assets 521,415 525440
Non-current financial assets - -
Total financial assets - fair value through profit or loss 521,415 525440
Changes in the fair value of financial assets through the income statement are
recorded as revenue/expense in the income statement.
8 Reinsurance & Other Recoveries Receivable
Reinsurance and other recoveries - Current 642,106 498,237
Reinsurance and other recoveries - Non Current - -
Total reinsurance and other recoveries receivables 642105 498,237
13

Al



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

9 OQutstanding Claims

a) Outstanding claims liability

Qutstanding claims (Gross)

Claims handling cost

Risk Margin

Total outstanding ciaims liability - undiscounted

Discount to present value
Discounted outstanding claims liability

Currrent
Non-current
Total

2010 2009

$NZ $NZ
2,819,213 2,697 697
2,818 213 2,697,697
2,819,213 2,697,697

No discounting has been applied to claims on the basis that the majority of claims are expected to be settled

within one year.

b} Risk Margins

A risk margin of 0% (2009: 0%) has been adopted in determining the outstanding claims

fiability to achieve the prabability of adequacy at a minimum confidence level of 75% (2009: 75%)

which is deemed appropriate by management

c) Liability adequecy test

The liabifity adequecy test has been conducted using the centrai estimate of the present value of
expected future cash fiows and has identified a surpius.

Central estimate of the present value of expected

future cash flows
Risk margin

Percentage risk margin
Probability of adequacy to be achieved through
adoption of the risk margin

$NZ

2,819,213

0%
85%

The Group's actuarial review in recent years has noted that Hull and Machinery claims
invariably run off at a lower cost then implied by the first years claim estimates. This would

imply that a negative 1BNR of circa 10% - 15% would be appropriate. In conjunction with
this and the historical claims book stability it is considered that a risk margin is not required.

INZ

2,697,697

0%
85%
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Income Tax

aj) income tax expense
Current taxes
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total current taxes

Deferred faxes
Crigination / {reversal} of timing differences

Income tax expense

b}  Reconciliation of prima facie tax payable to income tax expense
(Loss) / profit from operating activities before income tax

Prima facie income tax payable/ (benefit) (2010: 30%/ 2009: 30%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxabie) in calculating taxable
Non taxable income
Non deductible expenses
Tax iosses utilised
Foreign investor tax credits
Timing differences
Prior year adjustments

Income tax expense

¢} Income tax receivable/{Payable)
Opening balance at 1 January
Additional provisions recognised
Liabilities paid
Prior years recognised
Closing balance at 31 December
d) Deferred Tax Provision
Opening balance at 1st January

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Adjusted opening balance at 1 January
Movement during the year

Closing balance at 31st December

Excess of taxation allowances over depreciation on fixed assets
Other timing differences

2010 2009
NZ$ NZ$
246,582 78,274
78,275 32,397
324,857 110,671
5,778 (9,979)
330,635 100,692
1,128,110 140,952
338,433 42,286
(335) (58)
(B5,738) 44,787
- (18,720)
(5,778) 9,979
78,275 32,397
324,857 110,671
(142,131) (23,053)
(232,145) (56,224)
164,000 -
142,131 (62,854)
{68.145) {143,137y
14,517 4,538
14,517 4,538
(5,778) 9,979
8,739 14517
(3.333) (407)
12,072 14,924
8,739 14,517

Adjusted tax note to bring in line with rest of world tax calculations. Method adjusted to reflect total current taxes.
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

11 Contingencies

There are no contingencies in respect of the Board existing at the year end other than those
already included in the Statement of Financial Position.

The Branch has no known contingent liabilities or contingent assets at the reporting date or the
previous reporting date.
12 Commitments
a) Capital Commitments
There have been no capital commitments contracted for at the reporting date or the prior
year reporting date that have not been recognised as a liability.
b) Lease Commitments
There have been no lease commitments contracted for at the reporting date or the prior year
reporting date that have not been recognised as a liability.

13 Events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

No significant events have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date.

14 Related party transactions

a) Parent entitics
The ultimate parent entity is Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited, a
company incorporated in United Kingdom with Limited liability.

b) Guarantees
No guarantees have been given to or reccived from any related parties that are outside the
normal trading arrangements involving the retrocession of reinsurance contracts.

15 Credit ratings

The Branch was awarded a separate credit rating by Fitch rating agency of A- in July 2010
(2009: A-). At the date of this report, the parent entity has a credit rating of BBB+ from
Standard & Poor’s (2009: BBB+).

16
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

New Zealand Branch

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

16

Financial Risk Management

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the branch. This risk
arises principally from the branch’s reinsurance debtors, premium debtors and financial
assets,

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating. Management
performs an assessment of credit-worthiness of reinsurers and updates the security
commiittee on a regular basis to ensure all the reinsurers on the main reinsurance
programmes are A rated or above.

The group employs reinsurance intermediaries that are subject to the regulation and
approval of the Financial Services Authority in the UK and as such are required to
operate client trust accounts to ring-fence the amounts held on their client’s behalf.

The branch’s exposure to credit risk from premium debtors is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer.

Investment related credit risk is managed through the investment guidelines issued io
the fixed income managers. The guidelines impose strict diversification limits by credit
rating, maturity and per issuer.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the branch will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The branch’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, The branch monitors its forecast liquidity position by estimating the cash outflows
from its insurance contracts and purchasing investments with similar durations to meet
these obligations.

¢) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

The branch manages its investment portfolio in accordance with an investment
framework that 1s approved by the directors. The framework is used to determine both
the investment policy and to cstablish the investment risk appetite. In this context the
overall risk is reviewed on a regular basis and the asset allocation is adjusted to ensure
it reflects the investment risk appetite.

17
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited
New Zealand Branch
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

17 Insurance Contract Risk Management

The branch issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. The objective of the branch is
to ensure that sufficient technical provisions are available to cover liabilities arising.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance
contracts. The variability of risks is also reduced by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the usc of diversified
reinsurance arrangements.

The branch has limited its exposure to catastrophic events by the use of reinsurance
arrangements.

sk
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

We, Geoffrey Corbett Parkinson and Alan Stuart Rowland, being the CEOQ and Company
Secretary respectively, of Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited (‘the
Company’) certify:-

That the annexed Financial Information of the company’s business for the year ended 31st
December 2010 is true and correct and that these figures were incorporated in the published
accounts of the Company, a copy of which is annexed to this report.

That the Company Income and Expenditure Account and Cash Flow Statement with
attendant notes for the year ended 31st December 2010 are true and correct and that these
figures were incorporated in the amounts used within the published statutory accounts of
the group, a copy of which is annexed to this report.

STATEMENT QF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIE

The directors of the Company have accepted responsibility for preparing the annexed
Financial Information,

Under section 408(1) Companies Act 2006 whilst the directors of the company are required
to prepare and approve the Income and expenditure account of the Company for each
financial year as part of its statutory accounts, they are permitted by that section not to
publish the income and expenditure account of the Company when group accounts are being
prepared though they are required to disciose the amount of the profit for the financial year.

The income and expenditure account set out on page 3 is a true and correct copy of the
income and expenditure account approved by the directors of the Company on 23 March
2011 when the group accounts were approved.

As such the statement of directors’ responsibilities on page 18 of the group accounts also
applies to this income and expenditure account of the Company.

Under Financial Reporting Standard 1 Cash Flow Statements, the Directors of the Company
are not required to prepare and present a cash flow statement for the Company. Therefore
the Directors of the Company have now prepared this Cash Flow Statement.

.............................................

G € PARKINSON A S ROWLAND
Director Company Secretary
24" May 2011 24" May 2011
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Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

Review report of KPMG Audit Plc to Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company
Limited

We have reviewed the Income and Expenditure Account and Cash Flow Statement with
attendant notes of Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited (“the Company”)
for the year ended 31 December 2010 as set out on pages 3 to 5 of the Supplementary
Financial Information.

The directors have accepted responsibility for preparing the Supplementary Financial
Information.

Our responsibility is to issue a report to the Company on the Income and Expenditure
Account and Cash Flow Statement with attendant notes based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standard on Review
Engagements 2400 £ngagements to Review Financial Statements. That Standard requires
that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the
Income and Expenditure Account with attendant notes is a correct copy of the Income and
Expenditure Account approved by the directors of the Company on 23 March 2011 when the
group accounts were approved; and whether the Cash Flow Statement with attendant notes
is free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to enquiries of Company
personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less
assurance than an audit.

We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:

»« the Income and Expenditure Account is not a correct copy of the Income and
Expenditure Account approved by the directors of the Company on 23 March 2011
when the group accounts were approved; and

+ the Cash Flow Statement with attendant notes are not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the requirements of FRS 1 Cash flow statements.

Jjo an Holt

For'and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants

Quayside House,

110 Quayside,

Newcastle upon Tyne,

NE1 3DX,

UK

24" May 2011
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Sunderand Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT o T COMPANY ACQOUNTS
For the_year ended 31 Decerrber 2010 e,
2010 2009
£000 £000
Turnover 72,361 75,502
772,361 75,502
Surplus / (deficit) derived from
Insurance 366 (2,302)
Investrments (464) 195
Deficit before taxation {98) (2,107}
Taxation (162) 190
Deficit after taxation 260 (1,917}
Deficit after taxation atiributable to members of the
company {260) (1,917)
Accumutated surplus brought forward 112 3,584
Foreign exchange rate movement (83) (321}
Transfer on group restructure - (96)
Actuarial surplus / (deficit) recognised in pension scherme 21 (1,138)
Accunmulated (deficit)/surplus carried forward (210) 112

In addition to the accumulated deficit, the company has a reserve fund of £26,007,000
{2009: £26,007,000) and a revaluation reserve of £20,201,000 (2009: £17,402,000), giving
total capital and reserves of £45,998,000 (2009: £43,521,000).



Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT COMPANY ACCOLNTS
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Note 2010 2009
£000 £000
Operating activities
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from 1 (5,866) 6,369
operating activities
Dividends Recieved
Joint venture 85 122
Subsidiary 4,632 75
Interest paid
Bank interest paid {2186) (302)
Taxation
Corporation tax paid / (recovered) 104 {(78)
Capital Expenditure
Purchase of fixed assets (9086) {63)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 34 7
Acquisition
Acquisition on group restructure - (4,728)
Financing
Repayment of loan - (6,300Q)
(Decrease) / increase in loans to subsidiary undertakings (130) 1,926
Repayment of subsidiaries capital 3,275 -
1,022 (2,972)
Cash flows were invested as follows:
Decrease in cash holdings 2 {5,395) (10,280)
Portfolio investments
Purchase of fixed assets - 7
Purchase of equity securities - 41
Purchase of fixed income securities 60,721 15,378
Sale of equity securities - {241)
Sale of fixed income securities (54,304) {7,877)
Net investment of cash flows 1,022 (2,972)
Movement in opening and closing
portfolio investments net of financing
Net cash outflow for year (5,395) (10,280)
Transfer from subsidiary - (345)
Cash flow - portfolio investments 6,417 7,308
- decrease in loans - 6,300
Movement arising from cash flows 2 1,022 2,083
Changes in market values and exchange
rate effects 1,663 (242)
Total movement in portfolio investments
net of financing 2,685 2,741
Portfalio investments net of financing
at 1st January 28,990 26,249
Portfolio investments net of financing
at 31st December 2 31,675 28,990

Q)




Sunderland Marine Mutual Insurance Company Limited

For the year ended 31st December 2010

COMPANY ACCOUNTS

2010 2009
£000 £000
1) Recongciliation of deficit before tax to net cash
(outflow) / inflow from operating activities
Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation (98) (2,107)
Dividend received from joint venture {95) (122)
Dividend received from subsidiary (4,632) (75)
Profit on sale of fixed assets (2) -
Depreciation of leasehoid property 333 243
Derivative (income) / charge (173) 49
Pension contributions in excess of income and expenditure accou (348) (410)
Decrease in reinsurers' share of technical provisions 2,288 3,467
(Increase)/decrease in debtors {4,106) 1,912
Decrease in prepayments and accrued income 321 373
Decrease in technical provisions (3,392) (806)
Increase in creditors 1,568 2,371
(Decrease) / increase in accruals and deferred income (315) 798
Loss on sale of liquid investments 128 191
Adjustment to carrying value of liquid investments 20 (59)
Foreign exchange rate fluctuation (2,553) (647)
Tax suffered on investment income {196) (110)
Bank interest charge 214 305
Impairment on striking off subsidiaries 4,224 -
Revaluation of subsidiaries through income and expenditure accc 798 -
Impaimment on restructure - 296
Property revaluation through income and expenditure account 150 -
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (5,866) 6,369
2} Movement in cash, portfolio investments and
financing during the year
Deposits and Fixed tand and Total
cash atbank  income buildings
securities
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1st January 2010 6,616 14,103 8,271 28,950
Cash flow (5,395) 6417 - 1,022
Changes to market value & currencies 807 1,009 (153) 1,663
Balance at 31ist December 2010 2,028 21529 B,118 31,675
G[L



